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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Dragon
Mining Limited
(incorporated in Australia with limited liability)

Ernst & Young

11 Mounts Bay Road

Perth WA 6000 Australia

GPO Box M939 Perth WA 6843

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Dragon Mining Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries
(the Group) set out on pages 163 to 262, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Australia, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

Why significant
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

As at 31 December 2024 the Group recognised
property, plant and equipment, including capitalised
mine properties, of $53.306 million disclosed in »
Note 9.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Assessed whether the Group’s impairment
methodology was in accordance with the

requirements of International Financial

International Financial Reporting Standards require

the Group to assess in respect of the reporting
period, whether there is any indication an asset may »
be impaired. If such an indication exists, the Group
shall estimate the recoverable amount of the asset or
cash generating unit (CGU).

Reporting Standards.

Assessed whether all applicable assets and
liabilities had been allocated to the respective
CGU'’s.

» For the Faboliden CGU impairment assessment,

During the financial year, the Group assessed we:

that indicators of impairment existed requiring

it to perform impairment tests to determine the *
recoverable amount of the Faboliden and Vammala

CGUs.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
' KA R 2 A

Obtained and read the valuation report
prepared by the Group’s independent
expert.

Assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Group’s external experts
who prepared the valuation report.

Annual Report 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Why significant
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Management has performed an impairment
assessment for both the Fiboliden and Vammala
CGU’s as at 31 December 2024 and concluded
based on this assessment, that no impairment of
either CGU is required.

We consider this to be a key audit matter because of
the significant judgment and estimates involved in
the determination of the recoverable amount of the
Faboliden and Vammala CGU:s.

For the Faboliden CGU, this includes assumptions
relating to available resources and resource trading
multiples to apply to the available resources having
regard to the current status of the project.

For the Vammala CGU, this includes assumptions
relating to future gold prices, foreign exchange rates,
future production volumes, operating and capital
costs and an appropriate discount rate to reflect the
risk applicable to the future cashflows.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

e Engaged our valuation specialists to assess
the reasonableness of the methodology
and assumptions adopted by the Group’s
external experts in arriving at a recoverable
value for the Faboliden CGU.

e Agreed the resources used in the valuation
report to the latest published resources for
the Faboliden CGU.

For the Vammala CGU impairment assessment,
we:

e Evaluated the assumptions and
methodologies used by the Group in
assessing the recoverable amount of the
CGU, in particular board approved forecast
cash flows and inputs used to formulate
them.

e Assessed with involvement from our
valuation specialists the reasonableness
of the discount rate, foreign currency
exchange rates and commodity prices with
reference to broker consensus forward
estimates.

Evaluated whether the capital and operating
expenditure assumptions were consistent
with historical performance, information in
board reporting and releases to the market.

Assessed the work of the Group’s experts
with respect to production assumptions,
including reserve assumptions used in the
cash flow forecasts and assessed whether
key production assumptions were consistent
with those in the life of mine plan and
previous market releases.

Assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Group’s external experts.

Tested the mathematical accuracy of the
Group’s discounted cash flow impairment
model.

Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness
of the disclosures included in Note 9 to the
financial statements.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)
Rehabilitation provisions

Why significant
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

As disclosed in Note 13 Provisions, the Group
recorded rehabilitation provisions totaling $36.043
million as at 31 December 2024 relating to the
Group’s mine sites and processing facilities in
Sweden and Finland.

As disclosed in Note 13, the calculation of these
provisions required judgment in estimating the future
costs to undertake the rehabilitation activities, the
timing of future costs, inflation rates utilised and the
determination of an appropriate rate to discount the
future costs to their present value.

We consider this to be a key audit matter because of
the significant judgement and estimation involved
in determining: the cost of future rehabilitation
activities; the timing of when rehabilitation will
take place; and economic assumptions relating to
inflation rates and discount rates used to measure the
provision amount.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Our audit procedures included the following:

» Reviewed the Group’s process around the
estimation of rehabilitation costs.

> Assessed the appropriateness of the changes in
cost estimates and assumptions underpinning
the cost estimates for the rehabilitation of the
Group’s mine sites and processing facilities in
Sweden and Finland.

» With the involvement of our subject matter
specialists, we assessed the appropriateness of
the rehabilitation cost estimates determined by
independent experts’ engaged by management
for the processing facilities in Sweden and
Finland in the current financial year.

» Assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Group’s external experts,
the work of whom, formed the basis of the
Group’s rehabilitation cost estimates for the
Group’s mine sites and processing facilities
in Sweden and Finland and considered the
appropriateness of their work in conducting our
audit procedures.

» Assessed the mathematical accuracy of the
rehabilitation models underpinning the
provisions and evaluated the appropriateness
of the assumed timing of cashflows and the
inflation and discount rate assumptions applied
to the assumed cashflows.

» Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness
of the Group’s disclosures relating to the
recognition and measurement of rehabilitation
provisions included in Note 13 and Note 1z to
the financial statements.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)
Rehabilitation provisions
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information consists of the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
and Risk Management Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
[SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT’D)

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Plan and perform the Group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within
the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
Group financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for the purposes of the Group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management
Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee
with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT’D)

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Gavin Buckingham.

Ernst & Young
Perth, Western Australia
3 April 2025

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss ERmE
For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE20244E12 H31 H IR4EE

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
Note AU$’000 AU$’000
B 5E FERT T#oT
Revenue from customers LSl E 2(a) 72,804 60,495
Cost of sales S AR 2(b) (51,608) (54,550)
Gross profit EF 21,196 5,945
Other revenue HoAth i #5 2(c) 736 602
Other income HAdg A 2(d) 2,589 9,089
Mineral exploration expenditure WYy D S 1 (206) (274)
Management and administration IR AT B
expenses 2(e) (5,799) (5,087)
Exploration and evaluation costs WO K BA A G
written off 2(e) = (300)
Other operating (expense)/benefit At 4% 7 BE 7 2(e) (1,548) 658
Finance costs WS A 2(f) (1,187) (992)
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets 4l & & i) 2V
s, (EG18) 2(g) 338 (411)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) SNE %5, (E518) 924 (1,703)
Profit before tax KRB AR R 17,043 7,527
Income tax expense e 3 4,167) (2,338)
Profit after income tax BB &5 F 12,876 5,189
Basic and diluted earnings per share BARZEREE AEN
attributable to ordinary equity holders gz E 7
of the parent (cents per share) RBEEF(DRK)
Basic and diluted earnings per share A s LA Ky W T 2 A 20 8.14 3.28

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A
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Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income 43 & Hifth 2> T U 25 3%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE2024%FE12 H31 H IR
2024 2023
20244 20234F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FHRT T
Profit after income tax (brought forward)  BRFTEBIEEF (F&AT) 12,876 5,189
Other comprehensive income H2mk
Other comprehensive income to be AR I [ R
reclassified to profit or loss in Vig: E¥i-EAiL)
subsequent periods: HAy 2 i 7 -
Exchange differences on translation of HRF I} T B A
foreign operations HE A ZE B 1,130 2,978
Net other comprehensive income BREZHBBEN
to be reclassified to profit or loss PEEESENEMEZE
in subsequent periods (net of tax) SRR (HEFE) 1,130 2,978
Total comprehensive income FRAZHEBALR
for the year 14,006 8,167
Profit attributable to: BUR AL EAEmF
Members of Dragon Mining Limited HE IR AT R A R 12,876 5,189
12,876 5,189
Total comprehensive income LTATEEZ2E
attributable to: WA -
Members of Dragon Mining Limited HE & THA PR AR 14,006 8,167
14,006 8,167
DRAGON MINING LIMITED Annual Report 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

For the year ended 31 December 2024

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Financial assets

Other assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Mineral exploration and
evaluation costs

Right-of-use assets

Other assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Interest bearing liabilities
Other liabilities

Current tax liability

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions

Interest bearing liabilities

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY

RBEE

Bl K BIEEHY
5 5 T Ho A R iRk OH

TR
EEE
Foft & e

RBEERE

FRBEE

Y€ ~ s Mot
R 2 DR A A

{5 T HE
oAty &

FRBEERE
EEHAE
RBAE

B oy I FC A A 3R

i
[iR=8sLE
oAt £ 1
RS T A

RBRELE

FRBERE
1A
FtEAM

FRBRERE
BERE
EEFE

R

A

fit

Rt

RERERE

Arthur George Dew
A
Director

HF

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A

AR E B IR LA

HE20244E12 H31 H IR4EE

Note
R 5

(oI N e IE, QN

10
11

12
13
14

13
14

15
17

2024 2023
20245 20234F
AU$’000 AU$'000
T T TWoT
40,313 22,168
2,570 3,416
19,257 19,631
1,826 1,406
866 1,071
64,832 47,692
53,306 47,730
1,436 1,848
411 1,241
12,587 9,804
67,740 60,623
132,572 108,315
8,318 7,967
3,624 2,222
180 603

80 85
3,122 1,337
15,324 12,214
34,257 26,646
227 697
34,484 27,343
49,808 39,557
82,764 68,758
140,408 140,408
1,527 397
(59,171) (72,047)
82,764 68,758

Brett Robert Smith

Director

HH
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166 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity ~ #5 #fR s B 3L

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE2024%FE12 H31 H IR
Equity
Reserve
Convertible  Purchase of
Foreign Note Non-
Contributed Accumulated ~ Currency ~ Premium  controlling  Treasury Total
Equity Losses Reserve Reserve Interest Shares Equity
FERER

TEAR A d
Rkx RHBR HRERE RERE RERE EERG RclE
AUS000  AUS000  AUS000  AUS000  AUS000  AUS'000  AUS'000
fdx Fix Tix T T T Fix

At 1 January 2023 R2023F1A1H 140,420 (77,236) (5,718) 2,068 1,069 (7) 60,596
Profit after income tax for the year SE R B B A5 B 44 5 = 5,189 = = = - 5,189
Other comprehensive income Hib 2wl S = 2,978 S = = 2,978
Total comprehensive income for the year 4y 2 i A A8 46 - 5,189 2,978 - - - 8,167
Transactions with owners, ik Y N
recorded direct to equity it A

Share buy-back transactions Bt 1 52 (12) - - - - 7 (5)
Total transactions with owners BLHEH N7 5 A (12) = = S = 7 (5)
At 31 December 2023 12023%12R31R 140,408 (72,047) (2,740) 2,068 1,069 = 68,758
AC1 January 2024 7202451 81A 40408 (2040 Q740 2068 1,069 - 6858
Profit after income tax for the year BB BRI = 12,876 = = = = 12,876
Other comprehensive income A2 e S = 1,130 = = = 1,130
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 iy 2 it A 484 - 12,876 1,130 - - - 14,006
At 31 December 2024 #2024£12831R 0408 (9171 (610 2068 1,069 - B
DRAGON MINING LIMITED Annual Report 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees
Payments for mineral exploration
Interest received

Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property,
plant and equipment
Payments for development activities
Payments for exploration and
evaluation
Proceeds from sale of net
smelter royalty
Payment for rehabilitation bonds

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Lease liability payments
Payments for share buy-back

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year

Effects of exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A

Bl iR

HE20244E12 H31 H IR4EE

Note
B 5E

RETHRENE
W 21 % 5 3K0H

1] {34 M 78 % A8 B ARk
SR B R A 3K

C RS

EATFILE

E AT

REEHMERTER 4
REFHHERE
FIRVE VNS & S AR EN

L B 5% 185 B 15 3
9 HE R B A £ 3K

TR R 2 1Y P 1R
IR

SRR B S

RETBFMAREFE

METHRERE
HE AN
B A5 1 B A5F 25K

BMETDAMAREFE

REeERBRESEWIEM
B

ERH & KBS EY)

TEE = 5 g 3 B < M B < 5
TEYI 2

HRRAERREEE/EY

2024 2023
2024 20234F
AU$’000 AU$’000
TR FWoT
76,239 60,541
(49,763) (49,588)
(206) (456)
736 601
(28) (7)
(2,382) (2,423)
24,596 8,668
(1,160) (2,478)
(1,865) (1,385)
(1,152) (1,161)
- 6,435
(2,782) (4,640)
(6,959) (3,229)
(165) (167)
- (5)
(165) (172)
17,472 5,267
22,168 17,671
673 (770)
40,313 22,168
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION

a)

Reporting entity

Dragon Mining Limited (the “Company” or the
“Parent Entity”) was incorporated as an Australian
Public Company, limited by shares on 23 April
1990, and is subject to the requirements of the
Australian Corporations Act 2001 as governed
by the Australian Securities and Investments
Commission. The Company is domiciled in
Australia and its registered office is located at
Unit 202, Level 2, 39 Mends Street, South Perth,
Western Australia 6151 Australia.

The Company’s announcement of the results for
the year ended 31 December 2024 was authorised
for issue at the meeting of the Board of Directors
held on 13 March 2025 and the Company’s annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution
of the Directors on 3 April 2025.

The announcement of the results of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2024, comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”). The Group is a for profit entity,
primarily involved in gold mining operations and
gold mineral exploration. The Company has direct
and indirect interests in its subsidiaries, all of which
have similar characteristics to a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong, the particulars of
which are set out below:

Place and date of

Aok B FA 5 e P

HE20244E12 31 H IR4ERE
AR ERREASTHTERUE

1.

a)

2}

E/\j [ ARNF 5 TEA
1990@4)% 23 H gk BT £
{JI/\?X"E] s By A R

JHIESFIR 2001 A FE Y
EE{,:{JII EAREERELE

I N/ i 7 [ o YA
3£ﬂﬁﬁl¥$fghﬁ/\Umt 202, Level
39 Mends Street, South Perth,
Western Australia 6151 Australia °

Il T
CEE A - ZETOINIR
ﬁm?%m

N)Mw%*f&l
Mh

ANFHE2024F12 A31 H ILFERE
AN > BR20254F3 413 H
BT E E RG> A
NEEE 202412 H31 H IFEER
EH > THRIER20254E4 H3 R
HPRE BT o

ANFEHE2024F12 31 H IERE
SO T /A i /N VIR - /N
Al (HiRE A [ARERE]) - AERLE
FIEERE TERFESARER
Ko G WRINEE o A9 0% F) S LI 2 A
P B N MRS . By HA

B 75 7l 3 M B 1 A2 ) A [ £
G SENRSUL T

Hﬂ

Percentage

incorporation/

Nominal value of

of equity

registration and issued ordinary attributable to Principal
Name place of operations share capital the Company activities
LM A L, A it B ERITER AN F LG
L RAMUARERME RANEE ENER FREH
Dragon Mining Sweden SEK 100,000 100%  Gold Production
(Sweden) AB 27 April 1993 100,000% 4 77 B HHLE
5id19934F4 27 H
Viking Gold & Sweden SEK 100,000 100% Dormant
Prospecting AB 3 April 1996 100,000 $4 ¢ B W s
5i 4199644 1 3 H
Dragon Mining Oy Finland EUR 100,000 100%  Gold Production
24 March 1993 100,000 ¢ BEEE
¥ 199343 124 H
HEE A RA Hong Kong HK$1.00 100% Dormant
(Dragon Mining Limited)” 17 May 2017 1.00% 7 W s
E#E201745017H
Dragon Gold Mining Limited? Hong Kong HK$1.00 100% Dormant
EEERARAR 28 November 2024 1.00i7¢ LEE 30
20244F11 A28 H

& For translation purposes.

& Incorporated 28 November 2024.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

b)

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024 have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”), International Accounting
Standards (“IAS”), and Interpretations issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

All IFRSs effective for the accounting period
commencing 1 January 2024 have been adopted by
the Group and, except as noted below, accounting
policies have been consistently applied throughout
all periods presented. The adoption of the new
and revised standards and interpretations effective
1 January 2024 had no material impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group. The
Group’s accounting policies have been updated to
reflect the new standards where applicable.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention
except for certain financial assets and liabilities
which are required to be measured at fair value.
These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Australian dollars (“AUD”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise specified.

The Group has adopted the going concern basis
for the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

C)

Basis of consolidation

Control is achieved when the Company is
exposed, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. Specifically, the Company controls an
investee if and only if the Company has:

e power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee);

e exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect its returns.

When the Company has less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights in an investee, the Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

e the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

e rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

e the Company’s voting rights and potential
voting rights.

The Company re-assesses whether it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Company obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary.

The income, expenses, assets, and liabilities of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the Company’s consolidated
statement of profit or loss or the consolidated
statement of financial position from the date the
Company gains control until the date the Company
ceases to have control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

(9]

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Company’s
accounting policies. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash
flows relating to transactions between members
of the Company are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Company loses control of
a subsidiary, the Company:

e derecognises the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary;

e derecognises the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest;

e derecognises the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity;

e recognises the fair value of any investment
retained;

e recognises the fair value of the consideration
received;

e recognises any surplus or deficit in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss; and

e reclassifies the Company’s share of items
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss or retained earnings as appropriate.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less
impairment in the Company’s separate statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

d)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer. The Group
recognises revenue from the sale of gold bullion
and concentrate when control of the product
has been transferred to the customer. The Group
recognises revenue from toll milling services when
the associated performance obligations have been
met and can be reliably measured.

Bullion sales

Bullion is sold on the market through the Group’s
metal account. The only performance obligation
under the contract is the sale of gold bullion.
Revenue from bullion sales is recognised at a
point in time when control passes to the buyer.
This generally occurs when the Group instructs
the refiner to transfer the gold to the customer by
crediting the metal account of the customer. As all
performance obligations are satisfied at that time,
there are no remaining performance obligations
under the contract. The transaction price is
determined at transaction date and there are no
further adjustments to this price.

Toll milling revenue

The Group provides toll treatment services to a
third party at its Svartliden Plant with toll milling
revenue recognised in accordance with /FRS 15 -
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS
15”). The Groups’ performance obligations include
the processing of ore, refining services, and selling
the produced gold and silver. The Group is paid
a fixed fee per dry metric tonne of ore delivered
to the delivery point at the Svartliden Plant and
the Company accepts custody of the ore for the
sole purpose of treating it. The Group is paid a
production fee based on a tiered percentage of the
sale proceeds, dependent on the gold head grade.

While the ore is physically delivered to the
Svartliden Plant for processing, the legal and
beneficial ownership of the ore remains with the
customer. The Group must process the ore in
accordance with good operating practice and to
the agreed production plan. The Group will sell
all bullion through its metal account with all sale
proceeds held on trust and paid into the customers
nominated bank account within three (3) business
days of receiving cleared funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

d)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont’d)
Toll milling revenue (Cont’d)

The fixed fee is based on a set amount per tonne
and can be reliably measured as the ore is delivered
and processed. The production fee is recognised
over time as the ore is processed, but with some
considerations due to the variable nature of the fee
as follows:

e Initial recognition: as the Group processes
the ore, it recognises revenue only to the
extent of the portion of the service completed.
The revenue is measured based on the best
estimate of the eventual sale proceeds, and it
considers the expected head grade of the ore
(based on preliminary analysis) and the current
market price for gold and silver.

e Constraint on variable consideration: under
IFRS 15, the Group needs to apply the
constraint on variable consideration. This
means it can only recognise the portion of the
production fee for which it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the uncertainty is resolved.

e Subsequent adjustments: as uncertainties are
resolved, the Group adjusts the amount of
revenue recognised when:

e the final head grade of the ore is determined.

e the gold and silver are sold, and the final
sale proceeds are known.

The Group recognises the full amount of the
production fee once the bullion is sold and the
sale proceeds are measurable, and the collection is
reasonably assured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

e)

Income taxes

The income tax expense or benefit for the year
is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable
income based on the national income tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted for changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
the temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements and for
unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary
differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for
all taxable temporary differences:

e except where the deferred income tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting or taxable profit
or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled, and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

e)

Income taxes (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, carry-forward
of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the
extent it is probable that a taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry-forward of unused tax
assets and unused tax losses can be utilised:

e except where the deferred income tax
asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting
nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets
is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be
utilised.

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the year when
the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxable
authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

e)

f)

Income taxes (Cont’d)

Tax consolidation legislation

The Company implemented the Australian tax
consolidation legislation as of 1 July 2003.
The Company has applied the group allocation
approach in determining the appropriate amount
of current taxes and deferred taxes to allocate to
members of the tax consolidated group.

Goods and services tax

Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognised net
of the amount of good and services tax (“GST")
except:

e where the GST incurred on a purchase of
goods and services is not recoverable from the
tax authority; and

e receivables and payables are stated with the
amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or
payable to, the tax authority is included as part
of receivables or payables in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Cash flows are included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on a gross basis and
the GST component of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities, which is
recoverable from or payable to the tax authority, is
classified as operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net
of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable
to, the tax authority.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
' KA R 2 A

R B R MR (4])
HZE20244E12 431 H IH4ERE
AAERFREREFERME(E)

1.

e)

f)

FriEsi(4&)

BB OEA B

AT 200347 A1 H & ite B
B A PREG o AN 7 B 4R B 4 i
75 2 E T A AR Y R B TE M R
FEBLTE > DA T RUES & Ok 4 1E 1
A -

78 & R Bt
g~ S K A T T IR
T B0 (17 B B )) 4 A 1% e
W

o IR P T ROMRBS IR EE AR Y P
i S i 5 B A B 5 SRR [l
K

o JEWCHIA KR A BRI 2 FEA
PR ity S RS ) S RS MR

B B5 Jey 48 [0 55 8 A5 T B 5 J=) B 7
Lo e s ot 3 RS A 5 B s 51K DL DA
78 73 JRE A T S A R I B B

e BB EGT ALGaHE
WRR - W BCE KR B
PR A B 4 U R A e AR S R AL ISR
Jr (B = R o) SR A T BLBS )= &)

SRR Bl R -

TR B 8K  TH IR 4 BR BB R R
[m] 5 A - BEHS S 4 7 i e R 5
SRR o

Annual Report 2024
=R DR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION

(CONT’D)

g) Foreign currency transactions and balances
Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each company is
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which that entity
operates. The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Australian dollars which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rate prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation
of non-monetary items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or

loss on the change in fair value of the item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

g)

Foreign currency transactions and balances (Cont’d)
Group Companies

The results and financial position of all the
subsidiaries of the Company (none of which has
the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that reporting date;

e income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the rates prevailing on the
transaction date, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any monetary items that
form part of the net investment in a foreign entity
are taken to shareholders” equity. When a foreign
operation is sold, or borrowings are repaid the
proportionate share of such exchange differences
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

h)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at
their transaction price and other receivables at
fair value. Receivables that are held to collect
contractual cash flows and are expected to
give rise to cash flows representing solely
payments of principal and interest are classified
and subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Receivables that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. This category includes trade
receivables relating to concentrate sales that are
subject to quotation period pricing.

The terms of the concentrate sales contract contain
provisional pricing arrangements. Adjustments to
the sales price are based on movements in metal
prices up to the date of final pricing. The final
settlement is based on the monthly average LME
gold price for the month following delivery (the
“quotational period”). Movements in the fair value
of the concentrate debtors are recognised in other
revenue. The Group did not sell any concentrate to
external customers during the year.

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit loss associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The amount
of expected credit losses is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
the initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument. The Group always recognises the
lifetime expected credit loss for trade receivables
carried at amortised cost.

The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated based on the Group’s historic
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions, and an assessment of both the current
as well as forecast conditions at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

h)

Trade and other receivables (Cont’d)

For all other receivables measured at amortised
cost, the Group recognised lifetime expected credit
losses when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If on the other
hand the credit risk on the financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for
that financial instrument at an amount equal to
expected credit losses within the next 12 months.

The Group considers an event of default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due or external sources indicate that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group. A financial asset is credit impaired
when there is evidence that the counterparty
is in significant financial difficulty or a breach
of contract, such as a default or past due event
has occurred. The Group writes off a financial
asset when there is information indicating the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Inventories

Finished goods, gold concentrate, gold in circuit
and stockpiles of unprocessed ore have been
valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour, and
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
overhead expenditure.

Costs are assigned to stockpiles and gold in circuit
inventories based on weighted average cost. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the cost to sell. Consumables
have been valued at cost less an appropriate
provision for obsolescence. Cost is determined on a
first-in-first-out basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

j)

Financial assets and liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss); and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition, depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss or the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“OCl”).

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

j)

Financial assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

Initial recognition and measurement (Cont’d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e in the principal market for the asset or liability;
or

e in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible to the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, if market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
Level T — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 — valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

j)

Financial assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

Initial recognition and measurement (Cont’d)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

j)  Financial assets and liabilities (Cont’d)
Debt instruments (Cont’d)

Fair value through OCI: assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest, are measured at
fair value through OCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except
for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss: assets that do
not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair
value through OCI are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in the
year in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

j)

Financial assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in other
gains/(losses) in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at fair value through OCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Hedging

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation
are accounted for in a similar way as cash flow
hedges. Gains or losses on the effective portion
of the hedge are recognised directly in equity (in
the foreign currency translation reserve) while any
gains or losses relating to the ineffective portion
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. On disposal of the foreign operation,
the cumulative value of gains or losses recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve are
transferred to profit or loss.

Hedge Ineffectiveness

The Group aims to transact only highly effective
hedge relationships, and in most cases the hedging
instruments have a 1:1 hedge ratio with the
hedged items. However, at times, some hedge
ineffectiveness can arise and is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

j)

k)

Financial assets and liabilities (Cont’d)
Impairment

The Company assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit losses associated with
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and/
or fair value through OCI. The Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by /FRS 9 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables.

Deferred waste

The Group incurs stripping (waste removal) costs
during the development and production phase of
its operations. When development stripping costs
are incurred, expenditure is capitalised as part of
the cost of constructing the mine and subsequently
amortised over its useful life using a unit of
production (“UOP”) method. The capitalisation of
development stripping costs ceases when the mine/
component is commissioned and ready for use as
intended by management.

Stripping costs incurred in the production phase
create two benefits:

e the production of inventory; or
e improved access to future ore.

Where the benefits are realised in the form of
inventories produced in the period, production
stripping costs are accounted for as part of the
cost of producing those inventories. Where
production stripping costs are incurred, and the
benefit is improved access to future ore, the
costs are recognised as a stripping activity asset
in mine properties. If the costs of the inventories
produced and the stripping asset are not separately
identifiable, an allocation is undertaken based
on the waste to ore stripping ratio (for the ore
component concerned). If mining of waste in a
period occurs more than the expected stripping
ratio, the excess is recognised as part of the
stripping asset. Where mining occurs at or below
the expected life of component stripping ratio
in a period, the entire production stripping cost
is allocated to the cost of the ore inventories
produced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

k)

Deferred waste (Cont’d)

Amortisation is provided using a UOP method over
the life of the identified component of orebody.
The UOP method results in an amortisation charge
proportional to the depletion of the economically
recoverable mineral resources (comprising proven
and probable reserves) component.

Property, plant, and equipment

Mine properties: areas in production

Areas in production represent the accumulation
of all acquired exploration, evaluation and
development expenditure incurred by or on behalf
of the Group in relation to an area of interest in
which mines are being prepared for production
or the economic mining of a mineral reserve has
commenced.

When further development expenditure, including
waste development, is incurred in respect of a mine
property after the commencement of production,
such expenditure is carried forward to the extent
that a future economic benefit is established,
otherwise such expenditure is classified as part
of the cost of production. Amortisation of costs
is provided using a UOP method (with separate
calculations being made for each mineral
resource).

The UOP method results in an amortisation charge
proportional to the depletion of the economically
recoverable mineral reserves.

The costs are carried forward to the extent that
these costs are expected to be recouped through
the successful exploitation of the Group’s mining
leases. The net carrying value of each mine
property is reviewed regularly and, to the extent
that its carrying value exceeds its recoverable
amount, the excess is fully provided against in the
financial year in which it is determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

D

Property, plant, and equipment (Cont’d)

Plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment
is carried at cost less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment.

The cost of an item of plant and equipment
comprises:

e its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates;

e any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management; and

e the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis
on all items of property, plant, and equipment
other than mining plant and equipment and land.
The depreciation rates used for each class of
depreciable assets are:

5-50%
4-33%

Other plant and equipment
Buildings

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and
amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

Impairment

The carrying values of mine properties, plant and
equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Refer to
note 1(0).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

)

m)

Property, plant, and equipment (Cont’d)

Disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no further
future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

Mineral exploration and evaluation costs

Exploration expenditure is expensed to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as and
when it is incurred and included as part of cash
flows from operating activities in the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Exploration costs are
only capitalised to the consolidated statement of
financial position if they result from an acquisition.

Evaluation expenditure is capitalised to the
consolidated statement of financial position.
Evaluation is deemed to be activities undertaken
from the beginning of the definitive feasibility study
conducted to assess the technical and commercial
viability of extracting a mineral resource before
moving into the development phase.

The criteria for carrying forward costs are:

e Such costs are expected to be recouped
through successful development and
exploitation of the area of interest, or
alternatively by its sale; or

e Exploration and/or evaluation activities in the
area of interest have not yet reached a state
which permits a reasonable assessment of
the existence or otherwise of economically
recoverable reserves and active and significant
operations in or in relation to the area are
continuing.

Costs carried forward in respect of an area of
interest which is abandoned are written off in the
year in which the abandonment decision is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

m) Mineral exploration and evaluation costs (Cont’d)

n)

Farm out arrangements

In respect of Farm Outs, the Company does not
record any expenditure made by the Farmee on
its account. Where there is capitalised exploration
expenditure it also does not recognise any gain
or loss on its exploration and evaluation Farm
Out arrangements but redesignates any costs
previously capitalised in relation to the whole
interest as relating to the partial interest retained.
Cash received from the Farmee is treated as a
reimbursement of expenditure incurred (where
expenditure is capitalised) or gains on disposal if
there is no capitalised expenditure.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
normally of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts excluding any restricted cash. Restricted
cash is not available for use by the Company and
is therefore not considered highly liquid (i.e.,
rehabilitation bonds).

For the purposes of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are included within interest-bearing
loans and borrowings in current liabilities on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

0)

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial
assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever
the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-
generating unit exceeds (“CGU”) its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. A CGU is
the smallest identifiable asset group that generates
cash flows that are largely independent from other
assets and groups. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of a CGU are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata
basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the
greater of its (“VIU”) and its fair value less costs of
disposal (“FVLCD”). In assessing VIU, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

p)

q)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised
cost due to their short-term nature and they are
not discounted. They represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Group prior to the
end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise
when the Group becomes obliged to make future
payments in respect of the purchase of these goods
and services. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Payables to related parties are carried at the
principal amount. Interest, when charged by the
lender, is recognised as an expense on an accrual
basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) because
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the Group expects some or all the
provision to be reimbursed, for example under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability.

Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as a finance cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

r)

Interest bearing liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities includes leases, loans,
and borrowings.

Leases

The Group assesses each contract at inception to
determine whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for the period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the assets:

5-50%
4-33%

Property
Plant and equipment

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group at the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are
also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting
policy note 1(0).

The Group’s right-of-use assets are stated in note
11.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

r)

Interest bearing liabilities (Cont’d)

Short-term leases and low value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery
and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the
Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date where the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

r)

s)

Interest bearing liabilities (Cont’d)

Lease liabilities (Cont’d)

In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments) or a change in the assessment of
an option to purchase the underlying asset. The
Group's lease liabilities are stated in note 14.

Loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised
at fair value net of issue costs associated with the
borrowing. After initial recognition, interest bearing
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.
Amortised cost is calculated considering any issue
costs, and any discount or premium on settlement.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised, as well as through the amortisation
process.

Employee benefits

Wages, salaries, and other short-term benefits

The liability for wages, salaries and other short-
term benefits is recognised at the present value of
expected future payments.

Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in
the provision for employee benefits and measured
as the present value of expected future payments
to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Consideration
is given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures and periods of
service. Expected future payments are discounted
using market yields at the reporting date on high
quality corporate bonds or national government
bonds as appropriate with terms to maturity and
currency that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

)

t)

Employee benefits

Superannuation

Contributions made by the Group to employee
superannuation funds, defined contribution plans,
are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period employees’ services are
provided.

Restoration and rehabilitation costs

The Group records the present value of the
estimated cost of legal and constructive obligations
to restore operating locations in the period in
which the obligation is incurred. The nature
of restoration activities includes dismantling
and removing structures, rehabilitating mines,
dismantling operating facilities, closure of plant
and waste sites and restoration, reclamation, and
revegetation of affected areas.

An obligation arises when the asset is installed
at the production location. When the liability
is initially recorded, the estimated cost is
capitalised by increasing the carrying amount of
the related mining assets. Over time, the liability
is increased for the change in the present value
based on the discount rates that reflect the current
market assessments and the risks specific to the
liability. Additional disturbances or changes in
rehabilitation costs will be recognised as additions
or changes to the corresponding asset and
rehabilitation liability when incurred.

The unwinding of the effect of discounting on
the provision is recorded as a finance cost in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
carrying amount capitalised is depreciated over the
life of the related asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

u)

v)

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is calculated as net
profit attributable to members of the parent divided
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares,
adjusted for any bonus element.

Diluted EPS is calculated as net profit attributable
to members of the parent, adjusted for:

e costs of servicing equity (other than dividends);

e the after-tax effect of dividends and interest
associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares that have been recognised as expenses;
and

e other non-discretionary changes in revenues
or expenses during the year that would result
from the dilution of potential ordinary shares.

The result is then divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential
ordinary shares adjusted for any bonus element.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

There were no borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation during the year (2023: no borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation).
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198 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

w) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group
that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses (including
revenues and expenses relating to transactions with
other components of the same entity). Operating
segments results are regularly reviewed by the
Company’s chief operating decision makers and
are used to make decisions about the allocation
of resources and to assess performance using
discrete financial information. This includes start-
up operations which are yet to earn revenues.
Management will also consider other factors
in determining operating segments such as the
existence of a line manager and the level of
segment information presented to the Board of
Directors.

Operating segments have been identified based
on the information provided to the chief operating
decision makers, being the executive management
team.

The Company aggregates two or more operating
segments when they have similar economic
characteristics, and the segments are similar in
each of the following respects:

e geographical location;

e national regulatory environment;

e nature of the products and services; and
e nature of the production processes.

Operating segments that do not meet the quantitative
criteria as prescribed by IFRS 8 Operating Segments
are reported separately. An operating segment that
does not meet the quantitative criteria is still reported
separately where information about the segment
would be useful to users of the consolidated financial
statements.

Information about other business activities and
operating segments that are below the quantitative
criteria are combined and disclosed in a separate
category for all other segments.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
' KA R 2 A

R B R MR (4])
HZE20244E12 431 H IH4ERE
1. AEAERRERSTHTERNBE(E)

w)

D ERE

KRy 1 A 42 18 AT SR B 25 % E
A= B S (B 45 B AR ) B B th 48 A
BB HEAT A8 5 A B Il &5 M B 2)
B 2E 55 6 Bl B AH RS 43 o K848 4 8
¥EHANE EELKEIIRE EW
R > BRI B AE e
S Bl P S Rl B SR AR AT R
il o %5 L HE M A e B o 1) ZEE D
AR B o 8 3L RB A e A #8843 1 kg
IS R A R R > W E AR AR
T MR HEFT OGN ER
K- o

MRIE PR LA T AR P (R4
BRI BR ) B EOR AR E KL 0 o

A A 5t EL AT AL K 375 e 4 ELAE D
A 7 AR Bk B 7 A B AR DA b 8
B EA

o IE{E ;

o BHREEIRE

o EMMRBHIE &

o EEMMAMME -

ATF G I 5 1 55 7 T R 45 8 BEAE 2
J1 wi B RE WY RE AR E Y KL 0 R B
R]IE )R g S E S e

MBS R H A A > A EE
AR KEE IR AR B S 4 -

A7 R R i A EE 114 L At €5 9 B
R HE8 0y FAY EORE > A BT A H A )
HfS ) B A A o

Annual Report 2024
=R DR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

X)

y)

z)

Contributed equity

Issued and paid-up capital is recognised at the
fair value of the consideration received by the
Company.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Significant accounting judgements

There are no significant accounting judgements,
apart from those involving material estimates and
assumptions stated in policy note 1(z), impacting
the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Material accounting estimates and assumptions
The carrying amounts of certain assets and
liabilities are often determined based on estimates
and assumptions of future events. The key estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the
next reporting period are:

Determination of mineral resources and ore reserves
The determination of reserves impacts the accounting
for asset carrying values, depreciation and
amortisation rates, deferred stripping costs and
provisions for decommissioning and restoration. The
ore reserves, mineral resources or mineralisation
are reported in accordance with the Aus.IMM
Australian Code for reporting of Identified Mineral
Resources and Ore Reserves (the “Code”).

The information has been prepared by or under
supervision of competent persons as identified
by the Code. There are numerous uncertainties
inherent in estimating mineral resources and ore
reserves and assumptions that are valid at the time
of estimation may change significantly when new
information becomes available. Changes in the
forecast prices of commodities, exchange rates,
production costs or recovery rates may change the
economic status of reserves and may, ultimately,
result in the reserves being restated.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A

R B R MR ()
HZE20244E12 731 H IH4EE
AAERFRERETFERME(E)

1.

X)

y)

7)

BaRA
E B AT KR A 1 AR 2 m] Ry
HUB I A FETERR -

BEAT T A7 B B L AR R
34 RS T HE 2 1A e R 5 P 1 AR IE Y
WY (FUERBLIH) o

EXREF A

bR S B A FEAOR BOR M RE1 (2)
Jov 2t (9 A - AR 4R K A B
BT AR A S R TR T R Y
B o

EXETHEFRER

A T A B B R MR TR AR
R AR AR B E - R
— AR EEEE T EE KA
R FD R TR 0 47 2 O ) 2 114 2 O J
B Ay S BAG RE J R A

W B A7 1 42 19 7 7

EEMEYEAERAEERNME -
BB K E R~ A T SR R AR AR DA
S BE PH M A 2R A 1 el R B -
£~ R E B R R AR B
Aus. IMM 8 Yl £ BA 5% 2 & IR S 0
£ fifi = ¥R 15 Y& HI| (Australian Code
for reporting of ldentified Mineral
Resources and Ore Reserves) ([ #

EUNDE &t

% BT i e B P s B A AR A
ol ph B A R - AR R R
Lo A7 it B8 A 72 22 JHLE A R B B 1A
o A FH IR A 8000 B AT AE
75507 R b BLOR R SE h o 7 TE
BB A - MESR - Az RAR B 0] il
(1) 5 8) ] RE & 5 Bl B AC PR DL
A Ay e A EBUH RS -

Annual Report 2024
TR _WEER

199



200

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

z)

Material accounting estimates and assumptions
(Cont’d)

Determination of mineral resources and ore reserves
(Cont’d)

Changes in reported Reserves and Resources
estimates can impact the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment through depreciation,
provisions for mine rehabilitation, restoration
and dismantling obligations, the recognition
of deferred tax assets, as well as the amount of
depreciation and amortisation charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
However, quantification of the future impact is not
considered practicable.

Mine rehabilitation provisions

The Group assesses its mine rehabilitation
provision half-yearly in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 1(t). Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for mine rehabilitation as there are many
transactions and other factors that will affect the
ultimate liability payable to rehabilitate the mine
site.

The ultimate rehabilitation costs are uncertain,
and cost estimates can vary in response to many
factors, including estimates of the extent and costs
of rehabilitation activities, technological changes,
regulatory changes, cost increases as compared
to the inflation rates and changes in discount
rates. These uncertainties may result in future
actual expenditure differing from the amounts
currently provided. Therefore, significant estimates
and assumptions are made in determining the
provision for mine rehabilitation. As a result, there
could be significant adjustments to the provisions
established which would affect future financial
results. The provision at reporting date represents
the Group’s best estimate of the present value of the
future rehabilitation costs required. The restoration
activities in relation to Svartliden and Orivesi
are expected to commence once all necessary
approvals have been obtained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

z)

Material accounting estimates and assumptions
(Cont’d)

Impairment of non-financial assets

In accordance with accounting policy note 1(0), the
Group has determined that the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets is the Vammala CGU. As the Svartliden
Plant has an interdependency on the Vammala
CGU, the impairment assessment of the Vammala
CGU includes the Svartliden Plant. Expenditure
relating to the development of Faboliden has been
capitalised as mine properties and assessed as a
separate asset to the Vammala CGU. The Group
has determined that there is no active market for
intermediate components.

In determining whether the Vammala CGU
recoverable amount is the higher of FVLCD of
disposal or VIU against which asset impairment is
to be considered, the Group undertakes future cash
flow calculations which are based on a number of
critical estimates and assumptions including, for its
mine properties, forward estimates of:

e mine life, including quantities of mineral
reserves and resources for which there is
a high degree of confidence of economic
extraction with given technology;

e production levels and demand;

e metal price;

e inflation;

e cash costs of production;

e discount rates applicable to the cash-
generating unit; and

e future legal changes and/or environmental
permits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

z)

Material accounting estimates and assumptions
(Cont’d)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

In determining the recoverable value of Faboliden
mine properties, the Group conducted a market
value assessment of the Faboliden mineral resource
using comparable market transactions to derive
a valuation multiple per resource ounce having
regard to the current status of the project including
consideration of the Environmental permit
reapplication process.

Impairment is recognised when the carrying
amount of the CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount for the Vammala
CGU and Faboliden mine properties is determined
using the higher of the CGU’s value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal, classified as level
3 on the fair value hierarchy. Any variation in the
assumptions used to determine the value in use
or fair value less costs of disposal would result in
a change to the assessed recoverable value. If the
variation in assumption had a negative impact on
recoverable value, it could indicate a requirement
for impairment of non-current assets.

Refer to note 9 for further discussion of the current
year impairment trigger assessment and calculation
of the CGU recoverable values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

z)

Material accounting estimates and assumptions
(Cont’d)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Australia,
Sweden, and Finland. The Group’s accounting
policy for taxation stated in note 1(e) requires
management’s judgement as to the types of
arrangements considered to be a tax on income
in contrast to an operating cost. Judgement is also
required in assessing whether deferred tax assets
and certain deferred tax liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Deferred tax assets, including those arising
from un-recouped tax losses, capital losses and
temporary differences, are recognised only where
it is considered more likely than not that they
will be recovered, which is dependent on the
generation of sufficient future taxable profits.
Deferred tax liabilities arising from temporary
differences in investments, caused principally by
retained earnings held in foreign tax jurisdictions,
are recognised unless the repatriation of retained
earnings can be controlled and are not expected to
occur in the foreseeable future.

Assumptions about the generation of future taxable
profits and repatriation of retained earnings depend
on management’s estimates of future cash flows.
These depend on estimates of future production
and sales volumes, operating costs, restoration
costs, capital expenditure, dividends, and other
capital management transactions. Judgements are
also required about the application of income tax
legislation.
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204 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 4= & BABSEFE M 2k (4)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE2024%FE12 H31 H IR

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY 1. ATERREALHEREE(H)
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION

(CONT’D)

aa) Accounting standards and interpretations issued aa) CEMENMAEMNSHEIRR
but not yet effective B
The following accounting standards and g HE R vk R A BB HT
interpretations have been issued or amended but L RAEZ o AR BN ZE 2024 4F
are not yet effective. These standards have not 12 A 31 H 1E4F B W R BR #h 5% 45 e
been adopted by the Group for the year ended 31 HIl > sz S MM 40T
December 2024 and are outlined below:
Lack of exchangeability — Amendments to IAS 21 T BV — B ER 21 9
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (IERT ) bt 5 B 5Z B (120254 1
(effective 1 January 2025) H1HEAER)
The amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes ] [65 o 7 VA I 55 2 1 35 B 3% 5 ) i 2
in Foreign Exchange Rates (“1AS 21”) specify that (EaTA) (T BB et E RIS 2158 1)
when a currency is not exchangeable into another, BE - B — B RRE SR AL —
an entity must estimate the spot exchange rate at MG > BERLAMGFFIEAN
the measurement date, aiming to reflect the rate of BIVHA RE 2 - DAz BT IR A8 I Aok 4
an orderly exchange transaction under prevailing A F SR AR G 1 TE R o I Al B
economic conditions. This estimation can be AL A AT B AR Y B R i A A R B
based on an observable exchange rate or another iy o WeAh - BB JH B BE BN
estimation technique. Additionally, entities must Al bR PE fnfar 52 2 B R B - IR
disclose how the non-exchangeability of currencies WMBHEHRE > WATRHEAE
impacts their financial performance, position, BEAEET 5 MR PR -

and cash flows, with early adoption of these
amendments permitted and requiring disclosure.

IFRS S2 — Climate-Related Financial Disclosures [ [ B B FR A T I A B i A A
(effective 1 January 2025) 29— RIRH BT 7 15 B 07 (A
2025411 H#4E3K)

IFRS S2 Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“IFRS 1 S5 A 5 #R 7 T A 1 R T R 4 2 5
S2”) mandates that entities disclose information S B BT (5 B P R (T BB B s
under four key pillars: Governance, Strategy, Risk oty R AR R YE RIS 2 5% ) HE B
Management, and Metrics and Targets. Under the HE 0 ZEAR A8 DU K Oy T A s B R -
Governance pillar, entities must provide details on G AW~ Jm R DL RIS R H
the governance processes, controls, and procedures P IR o B EIE A B
used to monitor and manage climate-related risks B 5% 0 A B SR A TR LB A A
and opportunities. The Strategy pillar requires IRF BT B IR AR oA e B R
information on how the entity’s strategy addresses P2 wf g o Ry B R B E
these risks and opportunities, including the use (14 SR W 4 ] )t 2L AT ] L 2 i 2
of scenario analysis to assess the resilience of the EERE o ELEE I S A0 BT i R SR
strategy and business model. This analysis must 1 50 1k e SEHS R AL o 3 A e 2H 5
consider at least two scenarios: one where global AWM - — R A EE
temperatures are limited to 1.5°C, aligning with the B € ) 1A BRI TH R PRI 7E 1.5
Paris Agreement, and another where temperatures IRE > 55— 5 IR K IE b
significantly exceed 2°C. Th i 2 48 FREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY 1.
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

aa) ERMEMRERNSTTENRRE

aa) Accounting standards and interpretations issued

but not yet effective (Cont’d)
IFRS S2 — Climate-Related Financial Disclosures
(effective 1 January 2025) (Cont’d)

The Risk Management pillar focuses on how
climate-related risks and opportunities are
identified, assessed, prioritised, and monitored,
and how these processes integrate into the entity’s
overall risk management framework. Finally,
under Metrics and Targets, entities must disclose
their performance against climate-related metrics,
including Scope 1, 2, and 3 greenhouse gas
emissions, assets, or activities vulnerable to climate
risks, capital deployment, internal carbon pricing,
and any climate-related performance metrics in
executive remuneration. Entities are also required
to disclose progress towards any set targets.
These disclosures aim to provide stakeholders
with reliable, comparable, and decision-useful
information about the entity’s exposure to climate-
related risks and opportunities, its response
strategies, and its performance in managing these
factors.

In the first annual reporting period in which an
entity applies IFRS S2, the entity is not required
to disclose comparative information or Scope 3
greenhouse gas emissions.

IFRS S1 — General Requirements for Sustainability
Related Financial Disclosures (voluntary) (effective
1 January 2025)

The application of IFRS S1-Ceneral Requirements
for Sustainability Related Financial Disclosures
(“IFRS S1”) is voluntary. Entities may choose to
apply this Standard, which addresses sustainability-
related disclosures beyond climate. Earlier
application of IFRS S1 is permitted provided that
the entity also applies IFRS S2 at the same time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION

(CONT’D)

aa) Accounting standards and interpretations issued

but not yet effective (Cont’'d)

IFRS S1 — General Requirements for Sustainability
Related Financial Disclosures (voluntary) (effective
1 January 2025) (Cont’d)

[FRS S1 includes the conceptual foundations and
general requirements for preparing sustainability-
related financial disclosures. These requirements
address the reporting entity, materiality,
comparatives, as well as the location and timing
of reporting. These conceptual foundations and
general requirements are also reflected in Appendix
D of IFRS S2 so that an entity that is only disclosing
climate-related financial information only needs to
apply IFRS S2.

Clarification and Measurement of IFRS 7 and IFRS 9
Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2026)

The amendments to [FRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures (“IFRS 7”) and IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“IFRS 9”) introduce several key
changes: they clarify that a financial liability is
derecognised on the settlement date when the
obligation is discharged, cancelled, or expires.
They also provide an option to derecognise
financial liabilities settled through electronic
payment systems before the settlement date
under specific conditions. For financial asset
classification, the amendments specify how to
assess contractual cash flow characteristics,
particularly those linked to ESG or other contingent
features, and how to evaluate non-recourse
features and contractually linked instruments
for the SPPI test. Additionally, these changes
mandate enhanced disclosures in IFRS 7 for
financial instruments with contingent terms,
including ESG-linked features, and for equity
instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The new requirements will be applied
retrospectively with an adjustment to opening
retained earnings.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
' KA R 2 A

LR B R MR (4])
HE20244E12 31 H IR4ERE

1.

ARERRERSHERME ()

aa) ERMEMRERNSTEIRZRE

(#8)

[ 55 K FR A AT 1 AR 7 TE A AR T
HE — A FF A8 B B 15 2 1 7 1 —
HEESR (HEE) (H202541 41 HE
E5%) (#)

B8] (8% B T3 i 5 T AR A 4 R VEE ) AR
B8 A0 4 4R R AT A AR B S 1 S B
B ML A LR B — R OR o AR
KPRl ER - AN IR
P o DU S 0 B SRR o &
U A FE Bl K — I SR IR Sz B i [
RS S 45 T A A A U5 2 B 1 T
BEDIA o A LR B B SR A A B B S
5 B E B T R A I R A
AT A TR HE SIS 2 5 R A o

B B TR IR A5 T I A 7 4 [ K B T
AR B 9BE S Il T A A9 BT R 5T
#(H2026%1H1HEAEZL)

[ 5 B T A5 R 7 LA
2 (11 % B 5 e 15 e B B8 7 5% )
T2 B 5 A B R £ T I 55 9 9% < i L AL
([ [ P A 5 k4 ME R 25 9958 1) (1B %T
A) G| NBUA B S AE T - B N R
B~ TR B E R A H &
IETERE &Rl B - H IR {—
o RN o LR &
HHRWERETFZXMAFGEENE
BEE - ¥R EMEESE > ZE
& 5T 7T B A0Ae] 54l A 49 B4 i 2 4%
B R H R EIREE - AL e KE IR
HAth B8 SR 4 SCHEN B8 ) AR A > D R
] BEAL SPPIEN Gt 1) 45 28 2% R 5 18 K
HHHE T H o thah > WSS TR
) 2 SR [ R B A s M R A 7 9%
A i E A AR R (4G BLER T -
B R B IR BN R M AR D
Hoo DL Rt i oA A T 0 45 1 N T
st B THE > nsdies -

A% S B RT A A8 W R T o Sl
PR B AT SRR -

Annual Report 2024
=R DR



R B R MR () 207
HZE20244E12 731 H IH4EE
AAERFRERETFERME(E)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY 1.
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

aa) ERMEMRERNSTTENRRE

aa) Accounting standards and interpretations issued

but not yet effective (Cont’d)

Annual Improvements and Amendments to IFRS
7 Financial Instruments Disclosures (effective 1
January 2026)

Annual improvements and amendments to IFRS 7
include updates to the language on unobservable
inputs for gain or loss on derecognition, with
a cross-reference added to /FRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement (“IFRS 13”). The introduction to
implementation guidance has been clarified to
indicate that it does not necessarily illustrate all
the requirements in the referenced paragraphs of
IFRS 7, nor does it create additional requirements.
The disclosure of deferred differences between fair
value and transaction price has been amended to
ensure consistency with the requirements in IFRS 7
and the terminology used in IFRS 9 and IFRS 13.

Paragraph 37 of IFRS 7 has been amended to
replace the term ‘cost method’ with the phrase ‘at
cost’, following deletion of the definition of ‘cost
method’.

Earlier application of the amendments is permitted.

Annual Improvements and Amendments to IFRS 9
Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2026)

Annual amendments to IFRS 9 include updates for
the derecognition of lease liabilities requiring the
lessee to recognise any resulting gain or loss in
profit or loss. Earlier application of the amendments
is permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION

(CONT’D)

aa) Accounting standards and interpretations issued

but not yet effective (Cont’'d)

Annual Improvements and Amendments to [FRS 9
Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2026)
(Cont’d)

These amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that when
a lease liability is extinguished, the lessee must
recognise any resulting gain or loss in profit or
loss, although it does not address distinguishing
between lease modifications under /FRS 16 Leases
and extinguishments under IFRS 9.

Additionally, to avoid confusion, the term
‘transaction price’ as defined by /FRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”) has
been replaced with ‘the amount determined by
applying IFRS 15’. Narrow-scope amendments
to IFRS 9, effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2026, with earlier
application permitted.

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-Time Adoption
of International Financial Reporting Standards
(effective 1 January 2026)

IFRS 1 First-Time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS 1”) paragraph
B5 and B6 have been amended to include cross
references to the qualifying criteria for hedge
accounting in IFRS 9. The intention of this
amendment is to address potential confusion
arising from an inconsistency between the
wording in IFRS 1 and the requirements for
hedge accounting in IFRS 9. Earlier application is
permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY 1.
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

aa) ERMEMRERNSTTENRRE

aa) Accounting standards and interpretations issued

but not yet effective (Cont’d)
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements (effective 1 January 2027)

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements (“IFRS 18”) has been issued to improve
how entities communicate in their financial
statements, with a particular focus on information
about financial performance in the statement of
profit or loss.

The key presentation and disclosure requirements
established by IFRS 18 are:

e The presentation of newly defined subtotals in
the statement of profit or loss:

e The disclosure of management-defined
performance measures (“MPM”); and

e Enhanced requirements for grouping information
(i.e. aggregation and disaggregation).

IFRS 18 is accompanied with limited consequential
amendments to the requirements in other
accounting standards, including IAS 7 Statement
of Cash Flows. IFRS 18 introduces three new
categories for classification of all income and
expenses in the statement of profit or loss:
operating, investing and financing. Additionally,
entities will be required to present subtotals
for operating profit or loss, profit or loss before
financing and income taxes and profit or loss. For
the purposes of classifying income and expenses
into one of the three new categories, entities will
need to assess their main business activity, which
will require judgement. There may be more than
one main business activity.

IFRS 18 also requires several disclosures in
relation to MPM'’s, such as how the measure is
calculated, how it provides useful information and
a reconciliation to the most comparable subtotal
specified by IFRS 18 or another standard. IFRS
18 will replace IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY
OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION
(CONT’D)

aa)

bb)

Accounting standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective (Cont’'d)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture — Amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (effective date deferred,
however early application is permitted)

The amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements (“IFRS 10”) and IAS 128 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures (“IAS 128") clarify
that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transfer
to an associate or joint venture involves a business
as defined in /IFRS 3 Business Combinations (“IFRS
3”). Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or
contribution of assets that does not constitute a
business, however, is recognised only to the extent
of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or
joint venture.

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

Changes in Accounting Policies on Adoption of
New and Amended Accounting Standards and
Interpretations

The Group has adopted all new and amended
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board
that are relevant to the Group and effective as at 1
January 2024.

The adoption of these new and amended
Accounting Standards and Interpretations did not
impact the accounting policies or the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2. OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND EXPENSES 2s

(@) Revenue from customers
Revenue from gold sales
Revenue from toll milling

services'”

(b) Cost of sales
Cost of production net of
inventory movements

Depreciation of mine properties,

plant and equipment

Cost of production net of
inventory movements

Mining costs

Processing costs

Other production costs

Gold inventory movements

Cost of production net of
inventory movements

(c) Other revenue
Finance revenue and interest
Rent and sundry revenue

(@)

(b)

(c)

Ak B 2 e M ()

HE20244E12 H31 H IR4EE

Hibzs - WARBEX
2024 2023
20245 20234
AU$’000 AU$'000
TFET TFWIT
BEE WS
B R 2R 70,658 60,495
iR RS T RS U 35 )
2,146 -
72,804 60,495
SHER A
AR AR (O A7 B 58 )
45,009 44,895
WG ~ BE Kkt g
6,599 9,655
51,608 54,550
AR (F55 1 42 B )
PR LA 24,388 23,603
R A 19,458 18,397
HAt A 2 A 792 1,553
wE A B E) 371 1,342
A A (A7 B4 E))
45,009 44,895
Hibh
RilE W g e F1)LE 735 601
LERS & AT PN 1 1
736 602

M On 1 September 2024, the Group commenced a toll treatment
arrangement with nearby operation, Botnia Exploration AB. Toll
milling revenue consists of a fixed fee per ore tonne delivered for
treatment at the Group’s Svartliden Plant and a production fee
based on a tiered percentage of the sale proceeds, dependent on
head grade. Refer to note 1(d) for the Group’s accounting policy
relating to the recognition of toll milling revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 4= & BABSEFE M 2k (4)

2024 2023
20245 20234
AU$’000 AU$’000
FET T T
1,550 -
- 8,252
920 777
119 60
2,589 9,089
5,799 5,087
- 300
1
755 -
220 281
573 (939)
7,347 4,729
1,159 933
11 7
17 52
1,187 992

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE2024%FE12 H31 H IR
2. OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND EXPENSES 2. HfhUas - g AR BI (&)
(CONT’D)
(d) Other income (d) EHaplkA
Net gain from cancellation of B gL A I =R o)
Crusher agreement®
Sale of net smelter royalty HEE TR G BOREFI 4
Service income AR U A
Other income HAtsg A
(e) Operating expenses (e) RERX
Management and administration IR AT BB
expenses
Exploration and evaluation costs i SO ER S T AL B
written off
Impairment loss against net gain Tl (L s PR B T T e
from cancellation TR
of Crusher agreement®”
Depreciation of non-mine site W 1L 355 b AT
assets
Rehabilitation costs/(reduction) R A (H1380)
(f) Finance costs () BBHEA
Rehabilitation unwinding of TR PR M o B B
discount
Interest expense 5L BA 52
Other finance costs HoAt BA 5 A
@ Associated with cancellation of the Crusher agreement in Finland @

following successful completion of arbitration proceedings.
At year end, the Group has recognised an impairment loss of
AU$0.8 million against the Crusher receivable, refer to note 2(e).

At year end, the Group has recognised an impairment loss of @)
AU$0.8 million against the net receivable from cancellation of
the Crusher agreement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2. OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND EXPENSES 2. Hilz WARBEX(@E)

(CONT’D)

(g) Fair value change in financial (®
assets
(Gain)/loss on investments at fair
value through profit or loss

(h) Total employee benefits (h)
including Directors’
remuneration
Wages and salaries
Defined contribution
superannuation expense

Wages and salaries included in:

Cost of sales

Management and administration
expense

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A

Ak B 2 e M ()

HE20244E12 H31 H IR4EE

TREEZATESD

TR R i 45 AT EFH B BUE
i (lieds ) s tE

BEENAE
(BIEESFH)

T& K4
FE M EHRR B X

A A LU T &0 T & R -

5 A
BB R AT BB

2024 2023
2024 20234F
AU$’000 AU$’000
TR TFWoT
(338) 411
(338) 411
8,158 7,512
1,803 1,658
9,961 9,170
6,761 6,289
3,200 2,881
9,961 9,170
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

3. INCOME TAX

(@) Income tax expense (a)

The major components of
income tax expense are:

Current income tax

Current income tax expense

Adjustments in respect of current
income tax of previous year

Deferred income tax

Income tax benefit arising from
previously unrecognised
tax loss

Relating to origination and
reversal of temporary
differences

Income tax expense reported in
the statement of comprehensive
income

(b) Amounts charged or credited (b)
directly to equity
Deferred income tax related to
items charged/(credited) directly
to equity

(c) Numerical reconciliation between (c)
aggregate tax expense recognised
in the statement of comprehensive
income and tax expense calculated
per the statutory income tax rate

Accounting profit before income tax

At the Group’s statutory income
tax rate of 30% in Australia
(2023: 30%)

Adjustments in respect of current
income tax in foreign jurisdiction

Effect of different rates of tax on
overseas income

Net non-deductible (benefit)/
expense and non-assessable
(income)/expense

Tax losses and other temporary
differences (recognised)/not
recognised

Aggregate income tax expense
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3. FiBH

2024
20245
AU$’000
FET

2023
20234
AU$'000
T

FrEHimx
PR A0 B S £ 20 4

BT T 75
RV T 15 80 BH ¢
LA 4 5 R0 BT A5 B AE
kS —
L HE T 15 B
IR 48 7 R e R B R s R A AR
1 T 15 Bl 1 £

7 T Ry 2 Y A B 4 ()

4,167

2,338

i A T U 4 7% 2 R BT AR B
B 2
4,167

2,338
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H
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IEH
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XBBREEEREHBE
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W BT A5 B0 I v 17,043

7,527

AL ] T 1 3
PR BiRL%30%
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A1NBR ] v RE I B BT A5 o A

5,113

B SIS A AN R 25 1 2 2
(722)

AT (R4 ) /B S %
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(107)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 42 & BA B EFE M 3k (4) 215

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE2024%E12 H31 H IR
3. INCOME TAX (CONT’D) 3. FiB®i (&)
2024 2023
2024F 20234E
AUS$’000 AU$’000
TR T IC

(d) Recognised deferred tax assets (d ERAEEHEEERARE

and liabilities

Deferred tax assets BRI &

(excluding tax losses) (BB 5 1R B A1)
Leave entitlements IR HER 80 94
Rehabilitation provision (R 3,565 3,015
Lease liabilities HE AR 80 32
Share issue and listing costs JBe Ay 84T K BT RLA 14 27
Mine properties, property, 27L7/E SR YEN

plant, and equipment & 3,269 700
Accruals MRS 88 115
Temporary differences not RAERR I B I 20

recognised (6,835) (3,715)
Set off deferred tax liabilities R RS 5 RIS S AR 5

pursuant to set off provisions BLIA £ 15 (261) (268)
Deferred income tax assets AR ST FIT 1950 - =
Deferred tax liabilities BEAEFLIE A 15
Accelerated deduction A
Mine properties, property, WP ~ W3 ~ R K

plant, and equipment (120) (71)
Financial assets CHEE 8) 6
Set off deferred tax assets RIS B A AR B 1R

pursuant to set off provisions 128 77
Deferred income tax liabilities 1R S FT 1580 £ - -

(e) Tax losses (e) BiEEE
The Group has tax losses of approximately A B2 [H) A RO % B 43 A B TE s
AU$21.8 million in Australia (2023: AU$20.8 1H%21.8'H BT (20234 © 20.8
million) and approximately AU$41.0 million in HEMWIT) KA41.08 E#® T (2023
Sweden (2023: AU$41.1 million) that are available B AT EERT) o A R
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable VR4 8 7 Ae Ml 18 10 ] 0 HE I Y oK 2
profits of the jurisdictions in which the losses arose. JRE R i ] o &{JHEEIEAW%@ i)
The Australian tax consolidated group has available CIpi| %4‘)@5?575’32 61 #M T (2023
capital losses amounting to AU$2.6 million (2023: 2.6 MIRIT) o ALENERXE
AU$2.6 million). The Group utilised its tax losses ﬂ%ﬁﬁ&%%ﬁﬂ@ﬁélﬁﬁﬁiﬁQOBfﬁ :
in Finland during the year (2023: the Group utilised A G 4 TR T8 G 25 T R B A
its tax losses in Finland during the year). f18)
DRAGON MINING LIMITED Annual Report 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

B

INCOME TAX (CONT’D)

(e) Tax losses (Cont’d)

The benefits of the tax losses will only be obtained
by the companies in the Consolidated Entity if:

(i) they continue to comply with the provisions
of the Income Tax Legislation relating to the
deduction of losses of prior periods;

(ii) they earn sufficient assessable income to
enable the benefits of the deductions to be
realised; and

(iii) there are no changes in Income Tax Legislation
adversely affecting the Company’s ability to
realise the benefits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they may not be used
to offset taxable profits elsewhere in the Group,
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time, and there are no other
tax planning opportunities or other evidence of
recoverability in the near future.

Tax consolidation

Effective 1 July 2003, for the purpose of income
taxation, Dragon Mining Limited and its 100%
Australian owned subsidiaries formed a Tax
Consolidation Group (“Tax Group”). Members
of the Tax Group have entered into a tax sharing
and funding arrangement whereby each entity in
the Tax Group has agreed to pay a tax equivalent
amount to or from the head entity, based on the
current tax liability or current tax asset of the entity.
Such amounts are reflected in amounts receivable
from or payable to other entities in the Tax Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there
are no tax consolidation adjustments (2023: nil).
The nature of the tax funding arrangement for
the Tax Group is such that no tax consolidation
adjustments (contributions by or distributions to
equity participants) would be expected to arise.
The head entity of the Tax Group is Dragon Mining
Limited. In addition, the agreement provides for
the allocation of income tax liabilities between
the entities should the head entity default on its
tax payment obligations. At balance date, the
possibility of default is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and on hand
Restricted cash™

Ak B 2 e M ()

HE20244E12 H31 H IF4ERE
4. RERREEEY

AT R F B &
32 PR B a0

0 Restricted use cash represents the net proceeds remaining i
from the Placement of shares completed in January 2021.
In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Placing
Agreement, the entire net proceeds are to be used for the
payment of the additional environmental bonds in Finland and
Sweden. For further information relating to the utilisation of
restricted use cash during the year, refer to note 8.

(a) Reconciliation of net profit
after tax to net cash flows from

operations
Net profit after tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Exploration write-off

Unwinding of rehabilitation

provision discount

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Consideration shares
Fair value (gain)/loss on
financial assets

Changes in operating assets and

liabilities
Decrease in receivables
Increase in other assets
Decrease in inventory

Increase/(decrease) in trade

creditors

Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Net operating cash flows

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A

2024 2023
20245 20234
AU$’000 AU$’000
TFET Tt
39,858 19,484
455 2,684
40,313 22,168

P i P 2 B 4 18 7R 2021 4R 1 H S8 IR (3 LS 2
5T T A5 T T A o AR TC 6 ) ok 2 R e
AR > 2 ST 45 3 TR ST PR RS 488 AN AE 2 B
B B SR BN B R i 4 o A B4R T
BRI T g Bl i S 2 OB > W2 R RES -

(@ BRBRFRANEKEELEN

FRERNEBYR

BRBEAR T i Al

BELL T I HAE i %
s K 8
85 1] 15 2R 4545 0 B

AR (Wi st ), s 1 5
FRAE LBy

Sl N TE (s )

1
B E R A A B
A WA T ek

S 7 B
fr b

T 5 5 Bk, (i)

AR, )

ReE B i

2024 2023
2024 20234F
AU$’000 AU$’000
TR FoT
12,876 5,189
6,819 9,936

- 300

1,159 933
(251) 934
- 1,817)

(338) 411
846 46
(553) (1,850)

374 360
3,161 (1,350)
503 (4,424)
24,596 8,668
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT’D)

LR B R MR (4])
HE20244E12 31 H IR4ERE

4. RERFACEEY(E)

2024 2023
20245 20234
AUS$’000 AU$’000
TR TH#T
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities from (b) £RIEBEEANABYER
financing activities
Opening balance - 1 January naieE—1H1H 1,300 1,449
Cash flows: B e -
Repayment of lease liabilities R EARE (165) (167)
Non-cash changes: B 5 F)
Additions to lease liabilities (ﬁﬁfﬂ%ﬁﬁ 282 186
Accrued payments TR GikRE - (359)
Cancellation of Crusher o B A A
agreement? (1,019) =
Foreign exchange adjustments on i AR B A B B S R 5
borrowings and lease liabilities 9 191
Balance at year end ARG 407 1,300
@ Associated with cancellation of the Crusher agreement in Finland @ BRLSE R A H R T 4% Rk 8 2T B R A R
o

following successful completion of arbitration proceedings.

5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

5. BEZRHMEBWE

2024 2023

2024%F 20234

AU$’000 AU$’000

FET Tt

Trade receivables — amortised cost @ & 5 FE 2k IH — 4 i A< 657 2,826
Other receivables @ Eﬁﬁ}*@l& RIE D 1,913 590
2,570 3,416

(i) Includes trade receivables for gold sold on market and settled
within two days. The probability of default is considered to be
insignificant. All amounts have been collected subsequent to
year end.

(i) Includes the AU$1.5 million receivable from the cancellation of
a Crusher agreement in Finland following successful completion
of arbitration proceedings. An impairment loss of AU$0.8
million has been recognised against the carrying value of the
Crusher receivable at year end. Other receivables include bank
guarantees held on deposit with National Australia Bank for the
lease of the corporate premises. These deposits are rolled over
every three months in accordance with the lease terms. Due to
the short-term nature and credit rating of the counterparty, the
probability of default is insignificant.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
' KA R 2 A

() B T 3 I A O A B
5y BEWURK I o 38 #) ] REVE B2 R E K o B
AT A A IR BEAR IR -

(i) ALF6 58 A R R 7 1% 55 85 25 Bk o A% 1 ok

THMENCERIET .5 H ST  MEE > ETMKW
R 11 JU T (L R U (R 4 0.8 1 S5 T o HoAth
B WA T AL N R W S R A I AT R
A National Australia BankMJERITIEMR o #%%
17 B A B 0 3 i =W ) T AE — IR o B
o W R R 58 T T O AR SRR 0 B4
Al REHENE R E R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 42 & BA B EFE M 3k (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 202412431 H IL4EE
5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 5. ESREMEWKRTRIE(E)

The Groups’ exposure to credit risk and interest rate risk
are stated in notes 25(d) and 25(e).

Trade receivables aging analysis
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting year, based on invoice date, is as follows:

Amounts not yet due i R 2 Y 5 5E
Within 1T month —1E A

1 to 2 months —ZWE A

2 to 3 months W E =1 H
Over 3 months B =1 A

Trade receivables — amortised cost & 7 JE Iix 2k JE —HE 515 i A<

6. INVENTORIES 6.
Ore and concentrate stockpiles AT B R T R A — $4 AR
— at cost
Gold in circuit valued — at cost WA R B A — AR
Gold bullion on hand - at cost FUH E 45 — A

Raw materials and stores — at cost TR ) I fit s — e AR

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 7.
PROFIT OR LOSS

Investments at fair value through Rt 1 A P E R E R
profit or loss

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A

A 45 3] T Bt 0 45 80 L S A ) = L g A R
5E25(d) &% 25(e) ik o

8 5 BUGRIR R ARk 2 47
A AR R - B H MR R B 5
W B sk A BR e S AT I T

2024 2023
2024 20234E
AU$’000 AU$’000
FRxT SR STH
657 2,826
657 2,826
FE
2024 2023
2024 20234F
AU$’000 AU$’000
TR T C
12,470 13,549
4,236 4,672
1,492 -
1,059 1,410
19,257 19,631

RESZRAVFEFENERMEE

2024 2023
20244 20234
AU$’000 AU$’000
FExT T

&
1,826 1,406

Annual Report 2024
TR _WEER

219



220

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

75

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (CONT’D)

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets
comprise equity securities. The fair value of investments
in quoted equity securities is determined by reference to
their quoted closing bid price at the reporting date.

Following initial recognition, equity shares are
measured at fair value being the published price
quotation in an active market. Changes therein are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and presented as an unrealised gain/(loss). Refer to
note 1(j) for the Group’s policy relating to the disclosure
of financial assets.

Investment in Aurion Resources Limited

At 31 December 2024, the Group continues to hold
2,452,910 shares in TSX Venture Exchange listed
company Aurion Resources Limited (TSXV: AU)
(“Aurion Resources”), representing approximately
1.89% of the number of issued common shares of
Aurion Resources. The fair value movement in the
shares at year end was a gain of AU$0.42 million (2023:
loss of AU$0.41 million). There have been no share
sales as at the date of this report.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
' KA R 2 A

LR B R MR (4])
HE20244E12 31 H IR4ERE

7.

RESEATEFENEREE (K)

ST HEHEELE —MEENERHEE
B — R BB &R B s s TR
R &4 - S REEIERARES - -
AR TS H R E NN TEE 2% B
BN R B A U T fE R E o

KER A HERR > TR DAY B T 852 B R 1
AFEF R > HNSE R G EER
il R 28 By R B AR (1R o
FRAM RS EENAEBER > &2
BB EE1 () ©

2 & Aurion Resources Limited
202412 H31H > REBBHEEAR
2,452,910k Z i £ 7 7538 & P Al 3R -
Fﬁ/\j/\urlon Resources Limited (TSXV
A AR 5% (T Aurion Resources|)
&t *H’JAJJLC\Aurlon Resources £ #7171
HIBE £1.89% © FRBMA V%
B 545 0.42 @ # R T (2023 4F © 5 1H
0.41HHEMIT) - MEARE BB - M
HEATAT A BB 65 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

8. OTHER ASSETS 8. Hth&EE
2024 2023
20244 20234
AU$’000 AU$’000
TFET Tt
Current FE
Prepayments TE AT 3K IE 398 295
Other receivables S Ath R Wi R T 468 776
866 1,071
Non-current FERE
Environmental and other bonds FIE S A T A IR BE
at amortised cost e Ath PR35 12,587 9,804

During the year, the Company utilised HK$12.4
million (approximately AU$2.3 million) from the net
proceeds of HK$39.6 million (approximately AU$7.6
million) to fund the Vammala Environmental Bond.
The Company can apply for progressive release of
the environmental bonds from the Regional State
Administration Agency upon completion of the
rehabilitation work. The environmental bonds relate to
cash that has been deposited with Swedish and Finnish
government authorities. The bonds are held in an
interest-bearing account and can only be drawn down
when rehabilitation programs have been completed and
authorised by the relevant government authority.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A

R AT E B BTSSRI 4E39.6
HEBIG(A7.6 0 EEIT)FW1248 8
WIC (#9231 BMWIT) > U ffVammala
BREMFES - MERTHETERE > AN
) A] DA ) b B B SR AT B B W S R A R
WMERERFE S - REAESHCD BTN
A F B K S5 BB BRI Bl A B o R
BT UFHEIRP R > (EEERIER
56 NI 15 A B WO % RS 152 1 IRF O ] 3R
B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

A A 5 e Mk (A8)

HE20244E12 31 H IR4ERE

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 9.
Land Tt
Gross carrying amount — at cost i LA (1 W i AL
Buildings L
Gross carrying amount — at cost 2 LA (1 B T AR
Less accumulated depreciation and ¥ 2 513785 X di(H

impairment

Net carrying amount M T ¥

Property, plant and equipment

Gross carrying amount — at cost i LA w1 B i AL

Less accumulated depreciation and 8 2 514 #5 % ol (B
impairment

Net carrying amount e T 45 (L

Mine properties L £ R

Gross carrying amount — at cost R A R MR T A

Less accumulated amortisation and 3 2 5 #E84 & Bl (E
impairment

Net carrying amount R T {5 (L

Total property, plant and equipment

Gross carrying amount — at cost 2 A (B A e T 4

Less accumulated amortisation and ¥ 2 5H#EEY 2 W (E
impairment

Net carrying amount M T 4 (E

Included within property, plant and equipment and
mine properties are AU$19.2 million of capitalised
costs (31 December 2023: AU$19.5 million) relating to
Faboliden mine properties.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group is
required to review whether there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired, in accordance with
International Accounting Standards. If any such
indication exists, the Group shall estimate each asset or
cash generating unit (“CGU”) recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined as the higher of a
CGU ’ s value in use (“VIU”) and its fair value less costs
of disposal (“FVLCD”).

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
' KA R 2 A

2024 2023
20245 20234F
AU$’000 AU$’000
TR T FMoT
1,379 1,354
2,612 2,609
(2,496) (2,414)
116 195
43,836 42,534
(39,316) (37,144)
4,520 5,390
171,116 160,226
(123,825) (119,435)
47,291 40,791
218,943 206,723
(165,637) (158,993)
53,306 47,730

FEAWE - R MR DL R RIS SE
iéTZMEEJZZIKm 2@&3{*75 20234E12 A
31H : 19.5H &M T) BlFiboliden &5
%%ﬁ%ﬁ

T R > AR IR PR E A > A
I F 7 T AR A A TR R R W E
AT RE B o A A A T AT AT L S B
Fo ARSI G FE A BB e A
fir ([ Bl A AR B0 |) B9 T e In] 38 - W]
Wt 1] <5 ) 2 B 4 A AR LS ) R A
(1 AB B J) A HL 28 P (B9 o B R AS
(EF/A%Z{EMEH/%EEZIKJ)%%EPH@E‘%%
FERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

9.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

In assessing the CGUs, management of the Company
has determined that the smallest identifiable group
of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
is the Vammala CGU. As the Svartliden Plant has
an interdependency on the Vammala CGU, the
impairment assessment of the Vammala CGU includes
the Svartliden Plant. Expenditure relating to the
development of Faboliden has been capitalised as mine
development and assessed as a separate asset to the
Vammala CGU. The Group has determined that there is
no active market for intermediate components.

The Company has reviewed the Vammala CGU and
Faboliden mine properties for indications of impairment
using both external and internal sources of information
which included current performance, changes in
exchange rates, gold price, market capitalisation
and environmental permitting delays. The Company
identified the following indications of possible
impairment that resulted in impairment testing being
performed at year end:

e a market capitalisation deficiency compared to net
assets for the Vammala and Faboliden CGU’s; and

e delays in obtaining an Environmental Permit
to commence full-scale mining activities at
Fabolioden.

Vammala CGU

The Vammala CGU impairment assessment utilises a
life of mine discounted cash flow (“DCF”) model. The
recoverable amount of AU$84.3 million (31 December
2023: AU$35.9 million) has been determined using the
VIU methodology.

The key assumptions utilised in the impairment
modelling included a weighted average gold price of
US$2,405 per ounce (31 December 2023: US$1,825
per ounce), a USD:SEK exchange rate of 10.69 (31
December 2023: 10.69), a SEK:EUR exchange rate of
0.08 (31 December 2023: 0.09) and a pre-tax discount
rate of 7.0% (31 December 2023: 8.1%).

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A

wR A BB R MR (4]
BE2024%E12H31H ILFE

9.

% - BB RHRE R

FEAS B 4 AR BT R > AN A B T
€ EABRER A HIEAR B RE
il & 7E BB A A B i /N BTk A A
BEAL By Vammala Bl & & £ B AV o @ik
Svartliden I ji& B Vammala i 4 & 4 %
{76 2 A B A W B4R » ¥ Vammala®i
S 7 A BT I SR M B4R AL Svartliden T
J - BLFaboliden B4 B 1 B % C & A
b & 0% 1L BAEE > 6 FFA A Vammala$i 4
B A — TEB L E R o A TR E
Fp A E I TR R T 8 o

A ] FI A AR R AR TR > B3 A
B S - RS - &E - T {EMBREL
TR R HEE > M T Vammaladi 4 =
A B1 7 M Faboliden $F B8 & 7 B9 I8 (E b5
G o RN EIEFA FHIPF S > £ AE
AT A (R I 5ot A 5 ) Y A L

e VammalaMFaboliden®i 4 & A= B
B4 T L B 7 VR (ELAR L B R
P54

o TEMHISFiboliden B i 4 1A B % 1%
B A BR T FF Al 3 o

VammalalR € ELE 112
Vammala#i 4 & A B8 07 6l (E5 7F 45 $%
Tﬁ%lﬂi’fﬁﬁ?ﬁfﬁfﬂimi [ 97 BB 4
) AR o Wi ] 4 AE84.3 A AR T
(2023@12)%31 H :35.90 ##t) 5k
R EE T kR EE -

I (A AR H i ) T AR R A 3 R T
Y 4 % 2,405 % 08 H Al (2023 4F
12H31H :1,825% 5t ##) ~ £C
8, B i 7 B BE £ 10.69 (20234E12 H 31
H :10.69) ~ BG4 5 84 58 B fE %0.08
(20234FE12 A 31 H : 0.09) K 454 fif Bt
H7.0%(2023%12H31H : 8.1%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

9.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The calculation of the recoverable value is most
sensitive to the gold price and foreign exchange rates
specifically EUR:USD. A fall in the gold price to
US$2,345 per ounce (31 December 2023: US$1,779
per ounce) (i.e., -2.5% in each consensus forecast year)
in the Vammala CGU would decrease the recoverable
value by AU$6.1 million (31 December 2023: AU$2.6
million) and would not result in impairment. A decrease
in the foreign exchange forecast rate of -2.5% in the
Vammala CGU would decrease the recoverable value
by AU$5.6 million (31 December 2023: AU$2.1
million) and would not result in impairment.

Faboliden mine properties
Faboliden comprises the open cut mining operation, the
underground resources and exploration assets.

On 11 June 2024, the Supreme Court of Appeal
rejected the Company’s leave of appeal application
notwithstanding that the Environmental Impact
Assessment (“EIA”) has already been approved and the
mining concession remains valid and in place. The path
to production for Faboliden must now be via a revised
application to the Swedish Land and Environment Court
(“Environment Court”). The revised application will be
updated to include the Company’s measures aimed to
mitigate the Environment Courts concerns issued in its
ruling on 28 June 2022 and is estimated to take 2 years.

The Group has determined the recoverable value of
the Fdboliden mine properties based on its estimated
FVLCD using a market comparison approach (level 3
in the fair value hierarchy). In this regard, the Group
conducted a market value assessment for the Faboliden

Aok B 25 i M

(%)

HE20244E12 H31 H IR4EE

9.

Y% - BB RHRE (R

HEXSENWHBE
Al Wi A B 0 R B 2 R A AR A K
TE R 5 28 ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@i

Vammala$i 4 & A 807 8 S EAS NS
2,345% 70,/ % 7 (2023412 H31H
1,779 5 /4 &) (B R 4% 48 [ 78 3 47
FE-2.5%) A BB I B E R D 6.1H &
B (20234E12H31H 2.6 HEEIT)
P AN G B U E - Vammalafi 4 & £ B
A7 T T B 23R 36k 7= 2 . 5 Yo 147 2L 0 AT Wi [1] 4 (L
W5, 6F§§%L<fﬁ 2023412 A31H :2.1
HEEIG) KON EESORE -

FibolidenfRBEE
Fabolidentl 35 & K BAEZE ~ Mo N &

filh & BR O R AT AN ([ IR R 25T Al )
a%m&a%ﬁ%#%mﬁﬂ&ﬁ%’
MR 20244E6 H 11 H » & EoFER
B[] A% 8 7 B b #F R AT B ORG o BLTE
Faboliden 5 78 ## & o] Fm 4 1 3 A1 B8 5%
B ([ BRET IR ) 42 BB EsT B A
AETLE - BT 5T L > Y
AL HE AN T B A S IR 4 T B AE 2022 4F
6 A28 H By &P 1 i B T = E A B
M > FEFT TR FFRTAE o

AL E R T 5 LRk (A P E
S T/ e /N A = B an k=
JEFabolidenfi5 9 2 2 nl it BB E - W
o> REEFHTE LIRS LS

15 A Faboliden JORCHE % (/) i & & IR

JORC compliant Mineral Resources using comparable BEAT TS EE R o LA R
market transactions to derive a valuation multiple per <o/ 8 - SIERIER e
resource ounce.

Low Mid High
Faboliden mine properties valuation  Fiboliden %54 24 (H i i =
JORC compliant Mineral Resources 54 ORCHE#E il 7= & J6 &

(Koz) (TR 1,000 1,000 1,000
Valuation multiple (AU$/0z) A A% B (WoT i 7)) 27 34 41
Valuation of Mineral Resources i R A (B (T-T)

(AU$,000) 27,403 34,254 41,105

4) The mineral resources are based upon the Mineral Resource
Estimate as at 31 December 2023 previously released to the
Stock Exchange on 18 March 2024 — Annual Update of Mineral
Resource and Ore Reserve.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
' KA R 2 A

O ERE G R TIARE BT 20244E3 A 18 H
WS BT A RO B 2220234612 A 31 H BT E &
VR A B — A T 8 R A 1 2R A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Ak B 2 e M ()

HE20244E12 H31 H IR4EE

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D) 9.

Faboliden exploration assets

The value of the exploration assets related to Faboliden
nr 11, are valued using area multiples and geoscientific

approaches.

No impairment has been recognised for the year ended
31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: nil).

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the

year:

Land
Carrying amount at beginning of year
Net foreign exchange movement

Carrying amount at end of year

Buildings

Carrying amount at beginning of year
Depreciation

Net foreign exchange movement

Carrying amount at end of year

Property, plant and equipment

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Additions

Disposals

Accumulated depreciation of
disposed asset

Depreciation

Net foreign exchange movement

Carrying amount at end of year

Mine properties

Carrying amount at beginning of year
Additions

Increase in rehabilitation assets
Write off

Reclassification of evaluation costs
Depreciation

Net foreign exchange movement

Carrying amount at end of year

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A

Tt
AEA) B R TH
A1 BEE 28 ) 1

AR I M T L

B’
A0 Y MR T (e
s
41 HE 58 ) 1% BH

AR A R T (L

M - BERRE
A0 B B TH

U B

H
B E RAHTE

s
B HEE 52 Bl 1 A

AR Y M T

U £ R IE S

A0 Y S T

NN

EAREE NN

T

A E FEA A 1 E B
s

A1 HE 2 ) 1 A

AR Y M T

M- BERZEE)
Fiboliden®) X & =

A B Faboliden nr 1189 8% & & W EE
At ) T R 5 5O 3 BR 2 A (A o

HAE2024F12 31 H (-4 B e 52 I
{E(20234F12H31H : ) -

) R AFARY 5~ BB R % g i e (E 1Y

HHR
2024 2023
20245 20234F
AU$’000 AU$'000
FRT T
1,354 1,305
25 49
1,379 1,354
195 267
(82) (89)
3 17
116 195
5,390 4,428
2,137 2,362
(1,558) -
875 -
(3,047) (1,080)
723 (320)
4,520 5,390
40,791 48,427
522 606
6,724 (4,147)
= (387)
3,547 2,047
(4,390) (8,214)
97 2,459
47,291 40,791
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226 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 4= & BABSEFE M 2k (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE2024F12 31 H ILEE
10. MINERAL EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION 10. BEBZE R FERAE
COSTS
2024 2023
20245 20234
AU$’000 AU$’000
FERT TH#T
Balance at beginning of year WAL R 1,848 2,242
Additions NE 3,103 2,618
Exploration write-off R - (300)
Reclassification to mine properties #7705 2 ik 5 ) 3% (3,547) (2,047)
Net foreign exchange movement A1 e 56 ) 5+ B 32 (665)
Total mineral exploration and i 72E PLD R % AV B S AR
evaluation expenditure 1,436 1,848
The recoverability of the carrying amount of exploration PR e ST AT 04 W T RE 45 e 1| O A R
and evaluation is dependent on the successful BT B A R SE BRI > B AT
development and commercial exploitation, or AR 25 [ Bk ] o
alternatively through the sale of the respective area of
interest.
11. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 1. EREEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
AU$’000 AU$’000
FERT T T
Gross carrying amount — at cost MR T AR (E — R AR 869 2,551
Less accumulated depreciation and i 2 514785 & i (H
impairment (458) (1,310)
Net carrying amount i T 3% (2L 411 1,241
DRAGON MINING LIMITED Annual Report 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

11. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT’D)

Reconciliations

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of right-of use
asset classes at the beginning and end of the reporting
year:

Right-of-use assets — property ERAEEE-Wx
Carrying amount at beginning AFA) B R T R

of year
Additions WA
Depreciation e
Net foreign exchange movement 41T 538 ) 5% H
Carrying amount at end of year AR OR B R T B

Right-of-use assets — plant and
equipment
Carrying amount at beginning of year 4F-47] ) i [fij {H

R B R MR ()
HZE20244E12 731 H IH4EE
11. FRAEEEE)

HER

i 4 4] e i o A R (8 HE S ORI R
TE L FF) 36 B

EREEE-BERRE

2024 2023
2024 20234
AU$’000 AUS$’000
TE T SRLTH
172 176

294 89
(134) (85)

8 (8)

340 172
1,069 1,355
(938) -
43) (437)

17) 84

71 1,069

411 1,241

Net cancellation of right-of-use B (5 O
asset"

Depreciation e

Net foreign exchange movement 41 538 ) 5%

Carrying amount at end of year R Y MR T

Total right-of-use assets ok 48 O A

W Associated with cancellation of the Crusher agreement in Finland
following successful completion of arbitration proceedings.

The Groups’ lease liabilities are included in note 14.

12. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables and accruals

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A

O S R o B B M Bt
A -

AL L E A HOR M EE14 -
12. ESREMENRKIR

2024 2023
20244 20234E

AU$’000 AU$’000

TR T e

12 8,318 7,967
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

12. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONT’D)

13.

Trade payables aging analysis

An aged analysis of the trade creditors and accruals as at

the end of the year, based on invoice date, is as follows:

Within 1 month
1 to 2 months
2 to 3 months
Over 3 months

Trade payables and accruals

PROVISIONS

Current

Employee entitlements
Rehabilitation

Other

Non-current
Employee entitlements
Rehabilitation

Rehabilitation movement

Balance at 1 January

Net increase/(decrease) in
rehabilitation provision

Rehabilitation expenditure/
(reduction)

Discount unwinding

Net foreign exchange movement

Balance at 31 December

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
' KA R 2 A

LR B R MR (4])
HE20244E12 31 H IR4ERE

12, EZRHEMENREGE)
B 5 FE W SRR I R R 0 AT

ﬁAEEE  IRBRE HIE A AN E

HOERT 2 A ARES AT AN T

2024 2023
20244 20234
AU$’000 AU$’000
FRT T
—1EH 8,318 7,967
— E WA = -
W2 =1 H = -
A =18 A _ _
E T REAL 3T M E 5T 8,318 7,967
13. &%
2024 2023
2024 20234F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FET TG
FE
18 B #3 1,810 1,726
15 1,814 350
HAth = 146
3,624 2,222
e E
IR B 28 35
RS 34,229 26,611
34,257 26,646
12 AR5 F)
A1HTH R & 26,961 30,791
TEARBMEE 0, (W) 33
6,724 (4,143)
EARBA 3,7 (Hs)
573 (934)
S B 435 [m] 1,159 933
47| T8 5 ) 5 626 314
12 A 31 H 4565 36,043 26,961
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13. #E(E)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

13. PROVISIONS (CONT’D)

The provisions for rehabilitation are recorded in relation
to the gold mining operations for the rehabilitation
of the disturbed mining area to a state acceptable to
the various Swedish and Finnish authorities. While
rehabilitation is performed progressively where
possible, final rehabilitation of the disturbed mining
area is not expected until the cessation of production.
Accordingly, the provisions are expected to be
settled primarily at the end of the mine life, although
some amounts will be settled during the mine life.
Rehabilitation provisions are estimated based on survey
data, external contracted rates, and the timing of the
current mining schedule. Provisions are discounted
based on rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
that liability. The discount rate utilised for Finland at
31 December 2024 was 3.2% (31 December 2023:
4.5%) and in Sweden 2.5% (31 December 2023:
4.0%). Additions during the relevant periods to the
rehabilitation provision include obligations that do not
have an associated mining asset recognised at the end
of the reporting date. The long-term inflation rates are
1.8% and 1.8% in Finland and Sweden, respectively (31
December 2023: 2.0% and 2.2%).

Svartliden closure plan

On 25 September 2024, the Environment Court ruled
that the entire waste rock dump is acid forming/
potentially acid forming, requiring a hard cover. In its
ruling, the Environment Court ordered the Company to
place an additional collateral security of 32.0 million
SEK (approximately AU$4.7 million), bringing the total
security to 65.0 million SEK (approximately AU$9.5
million).

The Environment Court ruling gained legal force on 18
February 2025. The Company has 3 months from that
date to place the additional collateral security.

The Company has updated the Svartliden closure costs
for year end to reflect this change.

Vammala environmental permit

On 22 January 2024, the Supreme Administrative
Court upheld the Vammala Environmental Permit but
required additional environmental impact monitoring,
an updated plan on the cessation of operations and
an evaluation of whether the operations have caused
damages to private individuals. The financial impact
of the court ruling has been included in the Vammala
provision for rehabilitation as at the date of this
report. The Group continues to complete progressive
rehabilitation at all its sites. Rehabilitation expected to
be undertaken in the subsequent reporting period has
been recognised as a current liability.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A

18 R334 Tt 4 W DR BR 2E TS Tl Bk 0 A%
P BH B [ 35 PR AR B By b K% 2 1 22 1
Al B Z WK RE o B TE AT BERIE WL T
B TR R s (HIEGHEEEZ A G
B 7 1B PR R BT R ARE AR o
B> THFHA BB A T AR TR A A
PRIREAE AL > T HB 40 4 B € 76 0 1L 75 A 0
] AR 4 A5 o 18 R 4345 T AR 95 9 A B -
ARG # 2 2 CE F PR I T Y IR ] A
TP BT o $845 9 55 S e 5 Ai 6 1Ry 1]
1B 18 0% 77 5 ST A 10 2 20 % TH B B R e
R B AT R B © 220244F12 H31H >
IY AT RSB R 553.2% (20234E12 H
31H : 4.5%) » 8 42.5% (2023412
H31H 14.0%) o AH B A1 2R 4 10
TN B LTS R R 1K BT e 5 G 4 AR B PR
T A AT o RIS B % B Y = 198
MR A A1.8%1%1.8% (20234412 A 31
H :2.0%M2.2%) °

Svartliden® &5t 2

R20244E9H25H » IREEEBE R E - &
B ARG R v B T
MEATRE R 2 - IRPRHER D > BRET AP
REA BORAR N A E—TE32.0 @ B By i
o B (A0 4.7 E OB G ) (Y FE SN R IR BB
4 Bl&3te5.0a B E UL 7B (£99.5H
HOROT) B RS 4 o

BRI B R 20254E2 A 18 H B
BT - ARNTFIZEHAZ HE3MA R X
{STRRA M PR B < o

Ay ) L S B a% 2 B SR Svartliden 4R
R H Bl P ARAS o

Vammala3R 5 5F o] %

2024%F1 H22H > EmATBOEBEAERE T
VammalaZg ¥ 7Fnl 75 > (H E R EFTEE SN
BREE R BT > AT I A ) B R
IR A= - O SR PN €=
25 BE B UL BB 5 B S A A s B
Vammala 18 2R B4 o A48 18 4 48 fr H
T A W 58 B A G AR o TE I A HAR
HAEWPEITOE RO R SR A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

14.

INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES

Current &
Lease liabilities & A
Non-current FERE
Lease liabilities FHE A

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease
liabilities and the movements during the year.

As at 1 January W1ATH
Additions wE

Payments (NE
Cancellation of Crusher agreement™ 14 B i A f sk )
Net foreign exchange movement 41U 538 1) 5%

As at 31 December ®12H31H

W Cancellation of liability following cancellation of the Crusher
agreement in Finland.

Unsecured Loan facility with AP Finance Limited

The Company has an unsecured AU$27.0 million loan
facility with AP Finance Limited (“Loan Facility”).
On 2 December 2024, the Company extended the
expiry date of its Loan Facility from 30 June 2025 to
31 December 2026. All other terms and conditions
remain unchanged. The Company has not made any
drawdowns at the date of this report. The Loan Facility
is available for immediate draw down if required.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
' KA R 2 A

LR B R MR (4])
HE20244E12 H31 H IR4EE

14. stEBE

2024 2023
2024 20234
AU$’000 AU$’000
TR TWIT
180 603

227 697

407 1,300

N RPN AR R B R (S E o

2024 2023
20244 20234
AU$’000 AU$’000
FET Tt
1,300 1,449
282 186
(165) (526)
(1,019) -
9 191
407 1,300
m FE B 25 AT R B AR Do e 1 M R LA o
EZAP Finance Limited B HERRME

RNFIH A HAP Finance Limitedf927.0

R ) S AT R

il (T8l

£]) o JR20244E12H2H > ARNFIME
AANEREI I H h20254F6 A30H & &
§§2026fﬁ12}%31 H o JrA HAth 2 B e

AR AN B o AN R R AT B2
EHT‘E‘*” WA R T R
PRI -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

15. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Ordinary shares paid in full

Movements in issued capital

Balance at 1 January
Share buy back and
cancellation

Balance at 31 December

B B T R B (
HE20244E12 H31 H IR4EE

%)

16. DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared since the
commencement of the year and no dividend has been
recommended by the Directors for the year ended 31

December 2024 (31 December 2023: nil).

17. RESERVES

Foreign currency translation reserve  #NERE 5o fif fff
] A S R v M el A
1R i 8 — M L B A

Convertible note premium reserve
Equity reserve-purchase of
non-controlling interest

Summary of foreign currency translation reserve
This reserve is used to record exchange differences
arising from the translation of the consolidated financial

statements of foreign subsidiaries.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A

15. BEHRA
2024 2023 2024 2023
20245 20234 20245 20234F
Number of shares AU$’000 AU$’000
RDEE FRT TFHC
B4 3 158,096,613 158,096,613 140,408 140,408
2024 2023
20245 20234
No. No.
AU$’000 of shares AU$’000 of shares
ERITRAEE TERT BB EE T C I8 H
WA B&ER 140,408 158,096,613 140,420 158,171,613
Fe 473 [ B i
- - (12) (75,000)
P12 A31HEE B 140,408 158,096,613 140,408 158,096,613
16. RE

H 7 4F B B 0 15 A0 4 S A e B R S,
I E A E 2024412 A31H 1k
EFEIRA S (20234E12 H31H « {E) o

17. %16

2024 2023
20244 20234
AU$’000 AU$’000
FRT T
(1,610) (2,740)
2,068 2,068
1,069 1,069
1,527 397

IEETE R ERE

% VEAet M P T s 8k R 490 598 SN IS I % W)
for e P 5 R T8 A 1Y BEE S22 %8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

175

18.

RESERVES (CONT’D)

Summary of convertible note premium reserve

This reserve is used to record the equity component
of any convertible notes on issue. This is a historical
reserve, and no convertible notes are currently on issue.

Summary of equity reserve — purchase of non-controlling
interest

This reserve is used to record differences between the
consideration paid for acquiring the remaining non-
controlling interest and the carrying value of net assets
attributed to the non-controlling interest. This is a
historical reserve, and all subsidiaries are now wholly
owned.

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES

(a) Details of key management personnel
Directors’ and Executives’ remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules,
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

Directors

EFE

Mr Arthur G Dew

LR B R MR (4])
HE20244E12 31 H IR4ERE

17.

18.

it (AR

ERERRERERE

7% JEfif 4 R E 8 B AT AE MY AT Ao ]
SRR RE SR FR > o a% TEfa 4 2 JEE 5 Aok
{(EE RN SRR PN DRI S

EEFE -BEFERER

% VLAl M P W B S ) 8 S £ IS
e S A AR BEL i % I 2 B HEE i 1) T
FE A BR T 2 [H] A 25 30 o W% TR Gl M 1 TR
2%% o i A B A E BRI A8 2

TEEBABRKE

(@ EBREBAEFE
LR e R /A R
383(1)Ma LA K 2x w) (45 5% 5 2 1 2
) R 25 2 TR 43 1 R A AT BN
BAERFHMMT

Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Board

(appointed 7 February 2014)

KERIRSEAE

Mr Wong Tai Chun Mark
ERHSEAE

Mr Brett R Smith

FPATERFE S G T OR20144F2 77 HERE)
Alternate Director to Mr Arthur G Dew (appointed 19 May 2015)
KERESEAE RV R S (1R20154F5 A 19 H HEZRAT)

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

(appointed 7 February 2014)

Brett R Smith4t4:

Ms Lam Lai

ME L A4

Mr Carlisle C Procter
Carlisle C ProcterscE

Mr Pak Wai Keung Martin

WATE SR E AT E (R20144E2 A7 HEZRAT)
Non-executive Director (appointed 18 July 2019)

FPATE R R20194F7 18 HEEE)

Independent Non-executive Director (appointed 19 May 2015)
B R ATE R (R20154E5 19 HEZRAT)

Independent Non-executive Director

(appointed 5 November 2018)

SRS e
Mr Poon Yan Wai

WS IE AT E S (R20184E11 H 5 HEZRAT)

Independent Non-executive Director

(appointed 5 November 2018)

AR

Executives

THAE

Mr Neale M Edwards
Neale M Edwards’E4:
Mr Daniel K Broughton
Daniel K Broughton%&‘E

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
' KA R 2 A

WL EATEDS (R20184E11 H 5 HH#EZR(T)

Chief Geologist (appointed 19 August 1995)
R (1995488 H 19 H R AT)

Chief Financial Officer (appointed 8 September 2014)
R BIBE (12201449 H 8 HEZAT)
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18. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES 18. S EEEASWE(H)
(CONT’D)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

by TEEBASHH
THEERANE

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
Key management personnel

for the year ended 31 December

HE12A318LEE
2024 2023
2024F 20234
AU$'000 AU$'000
TR THIT
Short-term 1A 1,402,013 1,320,242
Long-term = H# 61,380 74,747
Post-employment BIRAR 147,664 124,297
Total A5t 1,611,057 1,519,286

The remuneration of Key Management Personnel
(“KMP”) is determined by the Remuneration
Committee having a regard to the position,
experience, qualification and performance of the
individuals and market trends.

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the
year included one Director and four specified
employees, for both 2024 and 2023 years.

Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining four highest paid employees who is
neither a Director nor Chief Executive of the
Company are as follows:

FTEEHAB(TEZEZEHEARDH
B 5 eh R 2= B AR SRR A B IR
fir ~ KEBy ~ EIE S R B BT 358

NN0s g 7.k A=
20244 ] 20234F » 45N LA B
FrARE B AL — & E R U IR E
=

/N T S ON =

9 B T 10 {57 i 1= 387 P A L 19 4 1A 38
P

for the year ended 31 December

BZ128318LEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
AU$’000 AU$’000
TR FHoT

Salaries, allowances, and benefits 4~ R M

in kind HYF 5 908,824 1,099,928
Performance related bonuses SEEHBHAE AL 220,948 107,578
Pension scheme contributions BIREFHE K 140,146 182,254
Total 4t 1,269,918 1,389,760

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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234 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

18. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES

(CONT’D)

A A 5 e Mk (A8)

HE20244E12 31 H IR4ERE

(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b)

(Cont’d)

Five highest paid employees (Cont’d)

The number of non-Director and non-Chief
Executive highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands,
presented in Hong Kong Dollars, is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000

Total

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
' KA R 2 A

1,000,000 7T

1,000,001 € £ 1,500,000 7C
1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7T
2,000,001 #7762 2,500,000 7T
2,500,001 #5762 3,000,000 7T
3,000,001 623,500,000 7T

Mt

18. TEEEABHKE (&)

FEEBASHM(E)

TLIR E R A (AE)
A i LA i (DL T 2 51) 1
I3 2 IR AR AT BN B R = 3
fE B ANEESIIT

for the year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
- 1
3 2
1 1
4 4
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(CONT’D)

In dollars

Directors
Mr Arthur G Dew”

(Non-Executive Chairman)

Mr Brett R Smith
(Executive Director)
Ms Lam Lai
(Non-Executive Direct
Mr Carlisle C Procter

(Independent Non-Executive Director)

MrPoon Yan Wai

(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr Pak Wai Keung Martin

(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr Mark Wong
(Alternate Director)

or)

Total all specified Directors

Specified Executives

Mr Neale M Edwards
(Chief Geologist)

Mr Daniel K Broughton

(Chief Financial Officer)

Total all named Executives

Total all specified Directors and

Executives

Notes:

(i) Mr Arthur Dew received certain emoluments from Allied Group
Limited in relation to his services to the Allied Group Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Wit

ES
Gy el
(AR
Brett R Smith : £
(#fE%)
WELT
(FufES)
Carlisle C Procter bk
(BiamEE)
R
(BikaTEE)
HEwEE
(BukanEs
YN L
(&S

eSS

ERTHAR

Neale M Edwards &£
(ERHEER)

Daniel K Broughton’
EIERHER)

FRBIBTAARLS

FREEEERTR
ABH3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

18. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES

Ak B 2 e M ()

HE20244E12 H31 H IR4EE

18. T EEEABHKE(F)

Post-

Short-Term Other Long-Term Benefits ~ Employment

ik R RAEA ik
Long Proportion of
Annual Service Super- Remuneration
Salary & Leave Leave  annuation Total ~ Performance
Fees  Bonuses  Accrued  Accrued  Benefits Emoluments Related
RARE
#&R kA iz i
fe B OEHER O REBE  oRN  FMARE thl
AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD %

i L3 i Lo L3 Lo
04 90,000 - - S0 1001 -
203 90,000 - - - 9,675 99,675 -
2004 33673 200,000 17,991 4,926 71664 631316 32%
2023 320700 200,000 28,797 6,460 55475 611432 33%
204 40,000 - - - - 40,000 -
2023 40,000 - - - - 40,000 -
2024 40,000 - - - 4,500 44500 -
2023 40,000 - - - 4,300 44300 -
2024 30,000 - - - - 30,000 -
2023 30,000 - - - - 30,000 -
2024 30,000 - - - - 30,000 -
2023 30,000 - - - - 30,000 -
2024 - - - - - - -
2023 = = = = = = =
24566735 200000 17,991 4926 86289 875941 2%
2003 550700 200000 28797 6460 69450 55407 23%
2024 225,432 - 0,473 4243 25,361 261,509 -
2023 224,448 - 10,906 8,171 24131 267,656 -
2024 339,846 70,000 21,033 0,714 36,014 473,607 15%
2023 335,094 10,000 14,346 6,067 30,716 396,223 3%
2024 565,278 70,000 27,506 10,957 61,375 735,116 10%
W3 55954 10000 D552 W8 547 663879 2%
2024 1,132,013 270,000 45,497 15,883 147,664 1,611,057 17%
2023 1,110,242 210,000 54,049 20,698 124297 1,519,286 14%
WiFRE

() Rk g ARt 1o A 4R B R A ([ 4R
B 1) (A2024%F12 A31H > #EAALNF EH
JBC A B R B I Ry 7] ([ 5K &R 1) 45.36%

(“AGL”), a company that owns a 45.36% (2023: 43.5%) interest

in APAC Resources Limited (“APAC”) as at 31 December 2024

who is a significant shareholder of the Company.

(i) Mr Brett Smith is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and his remuneration disclosed above includes those for services
rendered by him as Chief Executive Officer. On 14 March 2024,
Mr Smith’s remuneration was increased by 5% to AU$336,735

exclusive of superannuation benefits.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2

=

(2023%F : 43.5%) M 25 ) $2 01 IR 765 it i B
LA BRA A T4 -

o

(i) Brett SmithSe IRy A A A AT BB » |30
I e 25 1) 57 P, 935 ELAE: 2 AT BOAR R A 3t IR 5
MWL » £ 20244F3 H14 H > Smithdt
%Eﬂ;ﬁ;ﬁmiﬂé’ﬁnso/é336,735iﬁm(K@Tﬁﬁ%
THEA]) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

18.

19.

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
(CONT’D)

The Executive Director remuneration shown above is
for the provision of services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-
Executive Directors’ remuneration shown above are for
their services as Directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
year.

No Director proposed for re-election at the annual
general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

The Auditor of Dragon Mining Limited is Ernst & Young.

LR B R MR (4])
HE20244E12 31 H IR4ERE

18.

19.

TEEEASKE(HE)

b SR R AT HE S 2 A PEAS %
Lo 74 B ] ) 5 55 B (A 5 T WS R ) S8 P

ESCP R I RATE S R WA AT E S
e 5 A 5 AR o ) 3 S R 3R S BT s
HYFT M o

A PR AR S0 A ) 5 S 0 R R R AT AT
P < 9 22 B -

350 7 FBC SR 2 AR R L 92 AT 1 B A
i BELAS % ] 6T SL AN AT R AS 8 AR — 4F A
ST B G E B E BR AN ) T AR IR 1 iR
Ba# o

o BB 7 A

HE B VR FR 2 7 A9 A% SR /% 4 K 8 R
=BT

Fees for audit and review of any
statutory financial reports
covering the Group

Fees for assurance services that are
required by legislation to
be provided by the auditor

Fees for other services
—-Tax compliance
—Tax advice

Total

Ernst & Young (other than Australia)

Fees for audit and review of any
statutory financial reports
covering the Group

Fees for other services
—Other services

Total

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
' KA R 2 A

2024 2023
20244 20234
AU$’000 AU$'000
FE®xT Tt
W Je A 5E [ 19 (T 1] 75 48 B 5 4R 7
1 & Tt X 7 4 E H
271,656 296,616
5 Y BE SR A% B R 19 (R S R T
092 H
14,560 12,480
HoAth IR 75 19 2
— BB A B 24,000 22,000
— B 33,200 83,899
HET 343,416 414,995
B K Bl 2 T (RN BR A1)
P Je AN BE [B] 11 (T 1] 325 5 BT R 75
)& Gt R & 2
103,616 113,244
HAh R
— HoAb AR 5 3,198 -
st 106,814 113,244
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

20. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by
dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Parent by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by
dividing the profit after tax attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
(adjusted for the effects of dilutive options and dilutive
convertible notes). There have been no post balance
sheet movements impacting the diluted earnings per
share.

The following reflects the income and share data used in
the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

LR IR R MR (4])
HE20244E12 H31 H IF4ERE
20. BRREF

5 J FE A 1 ) 4 A T LA BE 2 W) 8 0 B fr
AN BG4 7 3 A 5 R R DA AR A 2 B AT
T3 e B - B

5 S 4 0 2 P < R DA B O W] A R
AN HE A R B A%t Bl BR DLAR 0 2 8 AT
EE IR AR -4 Bl L 0 8 ) i A
HE Ko WY LA SR 1Y) R BRAE O AR ) R
B o AL % AR Y AT SR A R Y
AfERE D -

PATR S Wt B3 i i A J 438 45 ) i A
Wi e B A R

2024 2023
2024 20234
AU$ AU$
BT T
Basic and diluted earnings per share SEREAR#HBZEF
Profit after tax used in calculation FH A GHE A R A R 4 v 2 1) 1Y
of basic and diluted earnings [R5 s A (T 0)
per share (AU$’000) 12,876 5,189
Weighted average number of ordinary i 5t 5. 45 I LA Kz #0785 20 1) 1)
shares outstanding during the year RN BB AT R
used in the calculation of basic TIRE S+ 8
and diluted earnings per share 158,096,613 158,126,481
Basic and diluted earnings per share & BB K il & R (7))
(cents) 8.14 3.28

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Subsidiaries

(b)

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of Dragon Mining Limited and
the subsidiaries listed in the following table:

Name of Entity
BEREE

Dragon Mining (Sweden) AB Sweden
Hii i

Viking Gold & Prospecting AB Sweden
By it

Dragon Mining Oy Finland
25

HE IR A FRA A

(Dragon Mining Limited)
Dragon Gold Mining Limited 2
HE4 B IR A BRA |2

s

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong

For translation purposes.

2 Incorporated on 28 November 2024.

Transactions with related parties

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements, the Company
has the following transactions with related parties
that are also exempted from the continuing
connected transactions disclosures according to
Rules 14A.73(6) and 14A.73(8) of the Listing Rules.

(i) The Company has effected Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability Insurance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(b) Transactions with related parties (Cont’d)

(if)

(iii)

In addition to his role as the Company’s
Chief Financial Officer, Mr Daniel Broughton
provides Chief Financial Officer services
(“CFO Services”) and the Company
also provides administrative services
(“Administrative Services”) including offering
the use of certain space in the Company office
premises located in Perth, Australia as its
registered office to ASX listed gold explorer,
Tanami Gold NL (ASX: TAM) (“Tanami
Gold”) and ASX listed base metals mining
and exploration company Metals X Limited
(ASX: MLX) (“Metals X”). Tanami Gold is
an associate of APAC Resources Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, and
hence a connected person of Dragon Mining
pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Tanami Gold is a Company
of which Messrs Dew, Smith and Procter,
the Company’ s Non- Executive Chairman,
Executive Director, and Independent Non-
Executive Director are also Non-Executive
Directors. Metals X is a Company of which Mr
Brett Smith is also Executive Director.

The provision of services to Tanami Gold
commenced from 8 September 2014. For
the year ending 31 December 2024, the
Company charged Tanami Gold AU$124,380
(31 December 2023: AU$111,409) for CFO
Services of which AU$22,630 was outstanding
at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:
AU$9,250) and AU$135,831 (31 December
2023: AU$126,656) for Administration
Services of which AU$19,520 was outstanding
at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:
AU$10,552). The increase in Administration
Services provided to Tanami Gold relates
to the provision of company secretarial and
accounting services that were provided during
the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(b) Transactions with related parties (Cont’d)

(iv)

(vi)

The provision of services to Metals X
commenced from 1 December 2020. For
the year ending 31 December 2024, the
Company charged Metals X AU$166,290
(31 December 2023: AU$123,197) for CFO
Services of which AU$26,351 was outstanding
at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:
AU$10,672) and AU$430,966 (31 December
2023: AU$357,027) for Administration
Services of which AU$62,753 was outstanding
at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:
AU$31,392). The increase in Administration
Services provided to Metals X relates to the
provision of increased accounting services.

The Company and AGL have a sharing of
administrative and management services
agreement (“Agreement”) pursuant to which,
the Company agrees to engage AGL and
AGL agrees to provide or procure its agents
or nominees to provide administrative
and management services as set out in
the Agreement to the Company and its
subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2024, AGL
owns 45.36% (31 December 2023: 43.50%)
interest in APAC, an entity with significant
influence over the Group, for an indirect
interests of 29.65% (31 December 2023:
28.84%). The Agreement commenced on 1
January 2023 for a term of three years ending
31 December 2025. For the year ending 31
December 2024, AGL charged the Company
HK$313,000 or AU$60,948 (31 December
2023: HK$302,000 or AU$58,296) for
administrative and management services
of which HK$68,000, or AU$13,929 was
outstanding at 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023: HK$69,000, or AU$13,067).

The Company has an unsecured AU$27.0
million loan facility with AP Finance Limited
(“Lender”). The Lender is a wholly owned
subsidiary of AGL. As at 31 December 2024,
AGL owns 45.36% (31 December 2023:
43.50%) interest in APAC, an entity with
significant influence over the Group, for an
indirect interests of 29.65% (31 December
2023: 28.84%). Refer to note 14 for
Information about the Loan Facility.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

22.

Entities with significant influence over the Group
As at 31 December 2024, the following entities have
significant influence over the Group:

(i) Allied Properties Resources Limited (“APRL"),
a wholly owned subsidiary of APAC, owns
46,877,727 (31 December 2023: 45,596,727)
ordinary shares of the Company for an interest of
29.65% (31 December 2023: 28.84%).

(i) Sincere View International Limited owns
31,111,899 (31 December 2023: 31,111,899)
ordinary shares of the Company for an interest of
19.59% (31 December 2023: 19.59%).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Identification of reportable segments

The Group has identified its operating segments based
on the internal reports that are used by the chief
operating decision makers in assessing performance and
determining the allocation of resources.

The Group has identified its operating segments to be
Sweden and Finland, based on geographical location,
different national regulatory environments, and different
end products. Dragon Mining (Sweden) AB, the primary
entity operating in Sweden, produces gold bullion from
the processing of Vammala flotation concentrate and a
toll treatment arrangement at the Svartliden Production
Centre. Dragon Mining Oy in Finland produces gold
concentrate from the Vammala Production Centre.

Discrete financial information about each of these
operating segments is reported to the Board and
executive management team (the chief operating
decision makers) on at least a monthly basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

22. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Accounting policies and inter-segment transactions
The accounting policies used by the Group in reporting
segments internally are the same as those contained in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment results include management fees and interest
charged on intercompany loans, both of which are
eliminated in the Group result. They also include
foreign exchange movements on intercompany loans
denominated in AUD, and external finance costs that
relate directly to segment operations. Segment results
also include intercompany sales of concentrate which
occur at rates that reflect market value.

Unallocated corporate costs are non-segmental
expenses such as head office expenses and finance costs
that do not relate directly to segment operations.

Disaggregation of revenue and major customers
External sales in Finland relate to concentrate from the
Vammala Production Centre in Finland. These sales
are all made under an ongoing arrangement to one
customer and the quantity of concentrate sales is agreed
by the parties in advance of delivery.

Inter-segment sales in Finland relate to concentrate
on-sold to the Svartliden Processing Centre for further
processing.

External sales in Sweden relate to gold bullion sold on-
market through National Australia Bank.

The Group’s segments reflect the disaggregation of
revenue by geography and product types as described
above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

22. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)
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Sweden Finland Unallocated Total
g B2y | ROE st
2024 2024 2024 2024
20245 20245 2024% 2024%
AU$/000 AU$/000 AU$'000 AU$'000
TR TRT TRET TRT
Segment revenue L6

Gold sales to external customers HIMBEFaE#E 70,658 = = 70,658
Inter-segment sales oy g = 66,547 = 66,547
Elimination of inter-segment revenue AR 7 AR k4 (66,547) - = (66,547)
Toll milling revenue W e A5 2,146 = = 2,146
Total revenue from customers REEFZUN=EE 6,257 66,547 = 72,804

Other income/(expense) HitA/(Bi%)
Other revenue oAbl 5 190 333 213 736
Other income Hptig A = 1,669 920 2,589
Cost of sales BB (9,475) (42,133) = (51,608)
Management and administration expenses ¥ R ATEFH (178) (1,982) (3,639) (5,799)
Other operating (expense)/benefit HAb&% (%) /3 (726) (2,993) 2,171 (1,548)
Finance costs RS A (564) (822) 199 (1,187)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) B Silss / (kdR) (29) 653 313 937
Other (expense)/income Hib (F3) /oA (31) 150 = 119
(10,813) (45,125) 177 (55,761)
Pre-tax segment (loss)/profit BEAIB(ER),EF (4,556) 21,422 177 17,043
Income tax expense P BLR . (4,167) . (4,167)
Post-tax segment (loss)/profit BE&2B(ER) 8H (4,556) 17,255 177 12,876
Sweden Finland Australia Total
b By | BN @t
2024 2024 2024 2024
20245 20245 20245 20245
AU$000 AU$000 AU$’000 AU$’000
TR TR TRx TEx
Total assets EEHAE 66,759 54,404 11,409 132,572
Total liabilities BEAE 15,464 33,318 1,026 49,808
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244 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

22. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Segment revenue

Gold sales to external customers
Inter-segment sales

Elimination of inter-segment revenue

Total revenue from customers

Other income/(expense)

Other revenue

Other income

Cost of sales

Management and administration expenses
Other operating (expense)/benefit
Finance costs

Foreign exchange loss

Other expense

Pre-tax segment (loss)/profit
[ncome tax expense

Post-tax segment (loss)/profit

Total assets
Total liabilities
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Sweden Finland Unallocated Total
Bi i PN | KO At
2023 2023 2023 2023
20234 20234 20234 20234
AU$'000 AUS'000 AU$'000 AU$'000
T T Tt Fie
M E

HINBEFHEES 55,775 4,720 - 60,495
ani ik = 44,366 - 44,366
JCHH 0 i (44,366) = = (44,366)
REEFZhEEE 11,409 49,086 - 60,495

Htt A/ (B%)
Hibl g5 190 370 42 602
Hibfe A - 8,312 777 9,089
B R A (11,424) (43,126) = (54,550)
EHRTHE Y (261) (1,265) (3,561) (5,087)
Hib 8 (%) /44 (808) (1,033) 2,499 658
I A (169) (807) (16) (992)
i ! (243) (508) (952) (1,703)
AL (20) (554) - (574)
(12,735) (38,611) (1,211) (52,557)
BHAT 25 (ER) /BR (1,326) 10,060 (1,207) 7,527
P B BH S = (2,338) = (2,338)
BRE&DH(ER),ER (1,326) 7,722 (1,207) 5,189
Sweden Finland Australia Total
Bt W TR Mgt
2023 2023 2023 2023
20234 20234 20234 20234
AU$'000 AUS$'000 AUS$'000 AU$'000
SRLVH SR T SRLVH
BE4E 40,596 5411 13,603 108,315
afEaE 9,784 26,136 3,637 39,557
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

23. ROYALTY CONTRACTS

@

(ii)

Hanhimaa royalty

The Group has a right to a 2% Net Smelter
Return (“NSR”) on future mineral production from
Agnico Eagle Mines Limited (“Agnico Eagle”) with
respect to the Hanhimaa Gold Project in northern
Finland. Agnico Eagle will have the right to buy
back 1 percentage point of the 2% NSR at any
time for €2.0 million cash. The Hanhimaa Gold
Project is an early-stage exploration project as at
31 December 2024 and therefore the Company
has not recognised any receivables from this
agreement, as the risk of reversal is considered
significant.

Endomines royalty

The Group has a right to a 1% NSR up to €1.5
million from Endomines Oy with respect to the
Mining Properties in the Hattu Schist Belt in eastern
Finland (“Mining Properties”) as described in the
Purchase Agreement dated 12 October 2006. The
NSR is only payable from the Mining Properties,
after the Mineral Resource as defined at the
Pampalo Gold Mine, at the date of sale has been
mined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

24. EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

(@) Exploration commitments

A A 5 e Mk (A8)

HE20244E12 H31 H IR4EE
24, B &IE

(a)

(b)

Due to the nature of the Group’s operations in
exploring and evaluating areas of interest, it is very
difficult to accurately forecast the nature or amount
of future expenditure, although it will be necessary
to incur expenditure to retain present interests in
mineral tenements. Expenditure commitments on
mineral tenure for the Group can be reduced by
selective relinquishment of exploration tenure or
by the renegotiation of expenditure commitments.
The approximate minimum level of exploration
requirements to retain current tenements in good
standing is detailed below.

Within one year —4ER

One year or later and no later than ~ —4FE{Z 18 K ANB IR TLAFE

five years

Capital commitments

Commitments relating to the acquisition of
equipment contracted for but not recognised as
liabilities are as follows:

Within one year —E R

One year or later and no later than ~ —4F 82 1% KRB 14

five years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

24. EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

(c) Short-term lease expense commitments
Future operating lease commitments not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

Within one year —4ERN
One year or later and no later than

five years

(d) Remuneration commitments
Commitments for the payment of salaries and
other remuneration under long-term employment
contracts in existence at the reporting date but not
recognised as liabilities are as follows:

Within one year —4ER
One year or later and no later than

five years

Amounts disclosed as remuneration commitments
include commitments arising from the service
contracts of Directors and Executives referred
to in note 18. Directors and Executive Officers
Remuneration that are not recognised as liabilities
are not included in the Directors’ or Executives’
remuneration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@)

(b)

Financial risk management policies and objectives
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk and commodity price risk), credit risk,
liquidity risk, and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks,
where considered appropriate, to minimise
potential adverse effects on financial performance
without limiting the Group’s potential upside.

The Group uses different methods to measure
and manage different types of risks to which
it is exposed. These include monitoring levels
of exposure to foreign currency and gold price
risk and assessments of market forecasts for
foreign exchange and gold prices. Liquidity risk
is measured through the development of rolling
future cash flow forecasts at various gold prices and
foreign exchange rates.

Risk management is carried out by executive
management with guidance from the Audit and Risk
Management Committee under policies approved
by the Board. The Board also provides regular
guidance for overall risk management, including
guidance on specific areas, such as mitigating
commodity price, foreign exchange, interest rate
and credit risks, by using derivative financial
instruments.

The Group also has a risk management program to
manage its financial exposures that includes, but
is not limited to, the use of derivative products,
principally forward gold sales and foreign currency
contracts. The Group does not enter financial
instruments, including derivative financial
instruments, for trade or speculative purposes.

Primary responsibility for identification and control
of financial risks rests with the Board. The Board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
the risks identified below, including the setting of
limits for trading in economic derivatives, hedging
coverage of foreign currency and gold, credit
allowances, future cash flow forecast projections
and financial instruments if considered necessary.

Instruments recognised at amounts other than fair
value

The carrying amount of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated
financial statements at amortised cost represents
their respective net fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(c) Fair values for instruments recognised at fair value
At 31 December 2024, the Group has the following
trade receivables at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2024
R2024E12A31H

Valuation

technique-  technique-
Quoted market  non-market
market  observable  ohservable

price inputs
Level 1 Level 2

fbEmE-  fBERE-
TEURR FHETER

TEEE  BARE

wR A BB R MR (4]
BE2024%E12H31H ILFE

25. @R T A (&)

(c) BAFEBRIMNMIENAFE
A20244E12 31 H » AR EEH R HEZE
YN TEFHE 2 B 5 EGRIET -

As at 31 December 2023
1#2023412/31H
Valuation  Valuation
technique-  technique-

Quoted market  non-market
market  observable  observable
price inputs inputs
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

k- flE-

THTEE T EA

TSHE  BANME  BAME
&t -8 GRH  E=R Bt
AUS000  AUS000  AUS000  AUS'000  AU$'000
An  THx T T Tz

(-8  (#z§)
AU$'000 AU$'000
Tan Tan
Financial assets at fair value ~ MB&1EA T B
through profit or loss R 1,826 =

1,826 1,406 - - 1,406

The Group uses various methods in estimating the
fair value of a financial instrument. The methods
comprise:

Level 1: the fair value is calculated using quoted
prices in active markets.

Level 2: the fair value is estimated using inputs
other than quoted prices included in
level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (as prices) or
indirectly (derived from price).

Level 3: the fair value is estimated using inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market. Trade receivables
relate to concentrate sales that are still
subject to price adjustments where the
final consideration to be received will be
determined based on prevailing London
Metals Exchange (“LME”) metal prices
at the final settlement date. Sales that
are still subject to price adjustments at
balance sheet date are fair valued by
applying a discounted cash flow model
incorporating credit risk and forward
pricing to estimate the present value of
the final settlement price using the LME
forward metals prices at balance date.

The Group holds 2,452,910 shares in Aurion
Resources whose shares are quoted in Canadian
dollars. The shares are measured at fair value
with changes therein reflected in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2 during the year.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A

A G E R 2 M7 ik A RE e TR
WA E - %5 7R

S i PRGBS
WHFH -

BB PR SE —R TR
AR LA B A SRR
R AT B (2 EL 4 (A1
A% ) B B (FEAE S AT A5
)) B A BE A E -

S AR 0 N TE B AN IR 3 A T
1T 45 WO ) i A6
R A SR L EE - B 5
WA T LA T R R A A 1
TEIESHEA R > I
B A IS AR A 4
x%%FMﬂiEx%
JiT 1) i B SR 4 A H BLAT Y
A%ﬁ%ﬁm B EE A
H A5 ml s A4S B
FIG PR 45 H AR 304 8 =2
S P v ) 4 e A A T 85 iR
JRE F B0 5 1 B8 JE B B 1
FE A ) S B B 4 A A A
Aty w4 5 AL A O B
i WA THALR -

£ [ 5 4 Aurion Resources Y
52,910 M - w% 4 Al i By LA
é? TCRAE o R A TE

ES
2,4
m
AiE > HEBEA G iIREm R P R -

A N B — A BRLER 4% 2 T 7 S AT AT
R o

Annual Report 2024
SR W R

249



250

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the loss that would be
recognised if counterparties failed to perform as
contracted. The Group’s maximum exposures to
credit risk at reporting date in relation to each class
of financial asset is the carrying amount of those
assets as indicated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. The
Group’s credit risk predominantly arises from cash,
cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial
institutions and other receivables.

While the Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of its products are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history, the Group does
have a concentration of credit risk in relation
to its gold concentrate sales in Finland due to
dependence for a significant volume of its sales
revenues on one buyer. There is generally a six-
week turnaround between shipment of gold
concentrate and payment from a gold concentrate
customer. The Company reduces its credit risk
in relation to gold concentrate receivables in
Finland by insuring 90% of the nominal value of an
assigned or internal invoice with a reputable high
credit quality Nordic financial institution.

However, as invoices are raised at the end of
each month and shipments occur frequently
throughout the month, there is credit exposure to
the smelting company for the value of one month
of shipments as insurance coverage commences
when an invoice is raised. Credit risk further arises
in relation to financial guarantees given to certain
parties. Such guarantees are only provided in
exceptional circumstances and are subject to Board
approval. No financial guarantees have been given
during the year (2023: nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(d) Credit risk (Cont’d)

Ak B 2 e M ()

HE20244E12 H31 H IR4EE

(d)

In relation to managing other potential credit risk
exposures, the Group has in place policies that
aim to ensure that derivative counterparties and
cash transactions are limited to high credit quality
financial institutions and that the amount of credit
exposure to any one financial institution is limited
as far as is considered commercially appropriate.
The credit quality of financial assets that are
neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings (if available) or
to historical information about counterparty default
rates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Counterparties with external
credit ratings

AA-

A

Total cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables
Counterparties with external

credit ratings
AAA
AA-
A+
A-

Counterparties with no defaults

in the past

Total trade and other receivables

For the purposes of determining credit exposures on
receivables, receivable amounts that have been factored
are evaluated against the credit rating of the factoring

RERRESEEY
A b il B AP iy F 7

AA-
A

e KB a5 Y R

B 5 kHEHMEKRRIE
G B RFAR B #F T
AAA

AA-

A+

A

A AT NI 4 A 0T O

B T B FLA I WSk S8 A

bank, where the factored amount is insured.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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25. @R T A (&)

EEAR(H)

A B A £ S BB T A
9 2 BB o 4 O (A
IREE EIE ETI N 1V
R 15 S G WA > M7 LY B
T4 — 5 4 T 1 £ 5 2
P 593 3 7 3 1 38 4 0 0 B o
SR8 e (110 5 20 7 £ 5%
% 71 2 2 SN 1 6 AR (47 5
AUHT ARSI
¥

2024 2023
2024 20234F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FET T
40,313 22,168
40,313 22,168
825 466

468 11
1,277 2,939
2,570 3,416
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252 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 4= & BABSEFE M 2k (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE2024%FE12 H31 H IR
25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 25. ®ET A (E)
(d) Credit risk (Cont’d) d) EERB(E)
2024 2023
2024 20234
AU$000 AU$’000
TR T
Environmental and other bonds RERHMRES
Counterparties with external credit G4l iB15 BFFHHIET T 77
ratings
AAA AAA 5,364 9,804
AA+ AA+ 7,223 -
Counterparties with no defaults R &S LSO IVES S yi]
in the past - =
Total environmental and other bonds % K HiA{F 35 4 44 %8 12,587 9,804
(e) Interest rate risk (e) FIEE B
At balance date, the Group had the following FAGEEH - AN E A DT T A
financial assets and liabilities exposed to interest KA B e BB 4 i
rate risk that are not designated as cash flow 0 4 Rl 7R % A
hedges:
Floating Fixed Non- Average
interest  interest interest interest
rate rate  bearing Total rate
FEHAE ETEAE %E #it FHRE
Note AU$000 AU$000 AU$'000 AU$'000 %
2024 2024%F Wi FTRExT TRz  FEx  TE:R %
Financial assets SHEE
Cash and cash equivalents 34 KB4 %E (1) 40,313 = - 40,313 4.1%
Trade receivables-fair value  fAMEZEHAF(HFHE
through profit or loss B 5 ENGR - - - - ~%
Environmental bonds REEMRES 12,587 = - 12,587 -%
52,900 - - 52,900 3.1%
Financial liabilities tREE
Lease liabilities HEaME - 407 - 407 =%
- 407 - 407 -%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(e) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

2023 2023F

Financial assets SREE

Cash and cash equivalents B4 RHE%EY

Trade receivables-fair value MBS /A T-EFT R
through profit or loss B 5 REOR

Environmental bonds RERES

Financial liabilities SREE

Lease liabilities HEARE

Aok B 2 R B ke (A

)

HE20244E12 H31 H IF4ERE
25. £RIT A (&)

(e) A=RE (&)
Floating Fixed Non- Average
interest interest interest interest
rate rate. bearing Total rate
FEAR R ENR i) mEt PR
Note AU$’000 AU$'000 AU$'000 AUS$'000 %
Wi T#x Tz TEx T#x %
(1) 22,168 - - 22,168 1.9%
= = = = %
9,804 - - 9,804 %
31,972 - - 31972 1.3%
- 1,300 - 1,300 %
- 1,300 = 1,300 %

(v Includes HK$2.6 million (approximately AU$0.5 million)
of restricted use net proceeds remaining from the
Company’s Placement of shares issued on 22 January 2021.

M AR A ARA TR 2021451 H22 H 4T

A A7 I 5 £ ] 5 R A ) 2k e

HEE

Hi2.61 BT (490,51 HRIT) ©

The Group holds 2,452,910 shares in Aurion
Resources whose shares are quoted in Canadian
dollars. The shares are measured at fair value
with changes therein reflected in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in accordance with
accounting policy note 1(j).

The Group regularly analyses its interest rate
exposure. Consideration is given to potential
renewals of existing positions, alternative financing
and/or the mix of fixed and variable interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(f) Foreign exchange risk

As the Group sells its bullion and gold concentrate
in USD and the majority of costs are denominated
in Swedish Krona (“SEK”) and Euro (“EUR”), an
appreciating EUR and SEK, or a weakening USD
exposes the Group to risks related to movements in
the USD:SEK and USD:EUR exchange rates.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency. The risk can
be measured by performing a sensitivity analysis
that quantifies the impact of different assumed
exchange rates on the Group’s forecast cash flows.

As part of the risk management policy of the Group,
financial instruments (foreign exchange contracts)
may be used from time to time to reduce exposure
to unpredictable fluctuations in the USD:SEK and
USD:EUR exchange rates. Within this context,
programs undertaken are structured with the
objective of minimising the Group’s exposure to
these fluctuations.

The value of any financial instruments at any point
in time will, in times of volatile market conditions,
show substantial variation over the short-term.
The facilities provided by the Group’s various
counterparties do not contain margin calls.

The Company and Group’s financial performance
is also affected by movements in AUD:SEK and
AUD:EUR. In accordance with the requirements
of International Financial Reporting Standards,
exchange gains and losses on intercompany
loans that do not form part of the Company’s net
investment in foreign operations are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(f) Foreign exchange risk (Cont’'d)
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Company did not enter or hold any foreign
exchange derivatives. At balance date, the Group
had the following significant exposure to foreign

currencies:

USD exposure

Entity with EUR functional currency

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

Entity with SEK functional currency

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade payables

Entity with AUD functional currency

Cash and cash equivalents

Net USD exposure

EUR exposure

Entity with AUD functional currency

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade payables

Entity with SEK functional currency

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade payables

Net EUR exposure

AUD exposure

Entity with EUR functional currency

Cash and cash equivalents
Intercompany loan

Entity with SEK functional currency

Intercompany loan

Net AUD exposure

HKD exposure

Entity with AUD functional currency

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Trade payables

Net HKD exposure

CAD exposure

Entity with AUD functional currency

Financial assets

Entity with EUR functional currency

Financial assets

Net CAD exposure

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R 2 A

Ak B 2 e M ()

HE20244E12 H31 H IR4EE

25. @R T A (&)

f SNERSE)

#E2024F12 A31H ILFR > i’&

) I B RT S BB A FEE A7 A= T
Ao &S H > AEBEA T E
KA B -
2024 2023
20245 20234
AU$/000 AU$’000
FRT T IT
Ey:l
LU E 2 2 BE B 10 B i
e kB &S EY 24,884 6,424
Z 5 MEN IR 853 3,108
LA By . 50 BII 1 2 T BE B 1 1) B 1
B4 S 455 95 260
E 5y REA 3 H (4,808) (1,330)
LITCE B RE S en B i
B4 KB &5 ED 15 5,143
Bl retix 21,039 13,605
BT Ak
LU TCE 2 2 RE B Men B i
ek aSEY 8
B 5 MEAT 3 - (4)
LA B 57 B 1 5 T RE B B 1 BT A
H4e B &%EY 23 218
H 7 AT 3K IH (374) (377)
R e g o (349) (155)
AR
UBOCIE 23 ) RE B 10 B i
e R &% EY 369 366
4 B 9 > ) ] B 3,594 -
LA By #5 BII 1 2 ) BE B 10 B 1
SE BN /A w] [ B K (3,902) (1,545)
TR e B 1 A 61 (1,179)
BTEE
PITCIE B RE R Wng B i
Ba R &%5EY 519 2,684
& 5 R IR 63 57
G 5y REA #E - (19)
5 T B 1 A 582 2,722
mTERE
LIBOCIERBIRER WH e
SR R 26 20
PUBOCIE B RE R i B i
SREE 1,799 1,386
o R B 5 AR 1,825 1,406
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(g) Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to movements in the gold
price. As part of the risk management policy
of the Group, a variety of financial instruments
(such as gold forwards and gold call options) may
be used from time to time to reduce exposure
to unpredictable fluctuations in the project life
revenue streams. For the year ended 31 December

A A 5 e Mk (A8)

HE20244E12 31 H IR4ERE

25. $RIT A (&)
(g BmEERR

AE 8] 0] BEAS IRe 5

B i e

4 A 4 Bt 4 R A HE )
F%ﬁIE H %’ﬁqﬂiﬁn{mqﬂxﬂfﬁ?ﬁ”ﬁ
HZE2024%12H31H 1k
ETE S AR ) 4R T ST sl R A AT ]

7 2 (o) T B < 1 5 B 1) S B o A
A A o) Ja o B BOSRE B — R 0 AR

A5 B T (0
> A

2024, the Company did not enter or hold any P AT AR TH (2023412 431 H -
commodity derivatives (31 December 2023: nil). ) -
The Group is exposed to commodity price volatility A S5 [ i B RS WA S R T P

on the sale of gold in concentrate, which is priced
on, or benchmarked to, open market exchanges,
specifically the London Metal Exchange (“LME”).

(h) Sensitivity analysis

The following tables summarise the sensitivity
of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities to
interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk. Had
the relevant variables, as illustrated in the tables,
moved, with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit and equity would have been affected as

ool A D B B JEL R o %A E AR B

I8 B T 85 58 5 P (f JHG 2 A 3 g 52
o T ([ J8 28 7 i 1) ) B H: 5
FLHE T 52 1 o

(hy BREDH
B R A% A A A SR B R E

&@ﬂ&%m %

shown. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis for the prior year.

31 December 2024

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables-fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Environmental bonds

Total (decrease)/increase

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
' KA R 2 A

%ﬂﬁﬁ
ERBEEEY
Mﬁ RGN
E/JEEJWEI&T}\IE
R AT HRHE
4
REERE S

BD) /B

20245128318

Interest rate risk -0.25%

4150 ) 2 L e S A1 T L B ) B
BRIE 4015 o B o AT
B > A IS R A

[Z57)
BB (LA T By

o JR LK AFEAF] ZEHEEAT AT o

Interest rate risk +0.25%

FZ@E-0.25% FEmER+0.25%

Profit Equity Profit Equity

g gl E@ il it

Note ~ AU$'000  AU$'000  AU$'000  AU$'000
W&E TERR TR TAR TRR
(M (101) (101) 101 101
(2) = = = =
3) = = = =
(5) 31 (31) 31 31
(132) (132) 132 132
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 42 & BA B EFE M 3k (4) 257
HZE20244E12 7431 H IH4EFE
25. @R T A (&)

(h) SRE D (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(h) Sensitivity analysis (Cont’'d)

31 December 2023

2023412 H31H

Interest rate risk -0.25% Interest rate risk +0.25%

FIZREE-0.25% FIZ A +0.25%
Profit Equity Profit Equity
i i i 1 i
Note AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$’000 AU$'000
i3 T T T SR
Financial assets SREE
Cash and cash equivalents e RBE%EY (1) (55) (55) 55 55
Trade receivables-fair value PR G A TR &
through profit or loss 08 5 e s (2) - - - -
Financial assets at fair value PR IR A TER &
through profit or loss Rl (3) - - - -
Environmental bonds RERES (5) (25) (25) 25 25
Total (decrease)/increase (B /e (80) (80) 80 80
31 December 2024 20245F12A31H
Foreign exchange -10% Foreign exchange +10%
SME-10% SE+10%
Profit Equity Profit Equity
gl i gl i
Note AU$'000 AU$000 AU$'000 AU$'000
i3 TRT TRERT TER TRRT
Financial assets SREE
Cash and cash equivalents Bla BB &5 EY (1 (2,591) (2,591) 2,591 2,591
Trade and other receivables G5 REMERGEE () (92) (92) 92 92
Financial assets at fair value R A TER
through profit or loss EmEE (3) (183) (183) 183 183
Intercompany loans EERA &R (4) (31 31) 31 31
Financial liabilities SRBE
Trade payables B0 et sios 518 518 (518) (518)
Total (decrease)/increase (BD) /g (2,379) (2,379) 2,379 2,379
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(h) Sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)

31 December 2023

LR B R MR (4])
HE20244E12 31 H IR4ERE

25. T A(E)

(hy BREDH(E)
2023412 H31H

Foreign exchange -10% Foreign exchange +10%

AME-10% AME+10%
Profit Equity Profit Equity
i 1 4 okl 4
Note AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$'000
W & T Fioe T T
Financial assets SREE
Cash and cash equivalents B4 LB &S EY M (1,510) (1,510) 1,510 1,510
Trade and other receivables Z o R HMREREIE  (2) 311) (311) 311 311
Financial assets at fair value BRI A T ERH &
through profit or loss MEmEE (3) (141) (141) 141 141
Intercompany loans SE T 7 A ] Bk (4) (155) (155) 155 155
Financial liabilities tRaE
Trade payables B 5 e Al wos 173 173 (173) (173)
Total (decrease)/increase )/ nALE (1,944) (1,944) 1,944 1,944

(1)

(2)

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits at call at
floating and short-term fixed interest rates.

Trade receivables include AU$2.8 million (31 December
2023: AU$1.8 million) of gold in concentrate and gold
doré receivables denominated in USD. After year end, the
Company received payment for all USD denominated gold
concentrate and doré trade receivables.

The Group holds 2,452,910 shares in Aurion Resources
whose shares are quoted in Canadian dollars. The shares
are measured at fair value with changes therein reflected in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intercompany loans are denominated in AUD and SEK.
Though these loans are eliminated upon consolidation,
changes in the value of the loans due to movements in
exchange rates will influence the consolidated result, since
exchange gains or losses on intercompany loans that do not
form part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a foreign
operation are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Interest bearing environmental cash bonds that have
historically been deposited with Swedish and Finnish
government authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

@

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the financial liabilities of
the Group and the Group’s subsequent ability to
meet its obligations to repay its financial liabilities
as and when they fall due. The Group’s objective
is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility using bank loans and equity
raisings.

The Company has an AU$27.0 million unsecured
loan facility with AP Finance Limited (“Loan
Facility”) which includes the following:

e the Loan Facility interest rate is calculated
using the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) plus 3% per annum; and

e the Company may select the interest period
of one (1), two (2), or three (3) months
commencing on the Funding Date.

On 2 December 2024, the Company extended the
availability period of its Loan Facility from 30 June
2025 to 31 December 2026. All other Loan Facility
terms and conditions remain unchanged. There
have been no drawdowns from the Loan Facility at
the date of this report.

Management and the Board monitor the Group’s
liquidity reserve on the basis of expected future
cash flows. The information that is prepared by
senior management and reviewed by the Board
includes bi-annual cash flow budget and forecasts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

26. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER YEAR END

On 28 January 2025, the Company’s application for a
new Environmental Permit for the Jokisivu Gold Mine
(“Jokisivu”) in southern Finland was granted by the
Regional State Administrative Agency.

The new Environmental Permit will allow the Company
to crush a maximum of 350,000 tonnes of aggregates
in the mining area, including approximately 300,000
tonnes of ore and 50,000 tonnes of waste rock per year.
It will also permit the Company to commence loading
and transport activities at Jokisivu an hour earlier at
6am, whilst imposing necessary provisions to prevent
noise and dust pollution and limiting the noise impact of
transport operations.

In its decision, the Regional State Administrative Agency
amended the regulations on discharges from the mine
to water bodies by adding limit values for the cadmium
and sulphate content. In addition, the mine’s water
discharges and water quality are now to be monitored
more frequently. The decision also approved the closure
of the Arpola open pit in accordance with the closure
plan. For other parts of the mine, the closure plan must
be amended before the start of closure.

On 1 April 2025, the Company announced it has
received a conditional voluntary cash offer (“Offer”)
of HK$2.20 for every Offer Share of the Company
from Allied Properties Resources Limited (“APRL"),
who is a significant shareholder of the Company.
Details of the announcement are available at
https://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/dragonmining/index.htm
(under Announcements & Notices) and
www.dragonmining.com.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

27. PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURE

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Financial assets

Other assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Intercompany loans

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Interest bearing liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions
Interest bearing liabilities

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY
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27. BATERKE

2024 2023
20245 20234
AU$’000 AU$’000
TFET Tt
10,666 12,990
164 189

26 20

152 163
11,088 13,362
137 139

264 101
4,477 4,477
309 793
5,187 5,510
16,195 18,872
493 3,216

239 279

78 72

810 3,567

28 35

188 34

216 69
1,026 3,636
15,169 15,236
140,412 140,412
(1,849) (1,575)
(123,394) (123,601)
15,169 15,236
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At 1 January 2023

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Share buy-back and cancellation

At 31 December 2023

At 1 January 2024

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for

the year

At 31 December 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

27. PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURE (CONT’D)
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Convertible
Contributed  Accumulated Note Premium Other Total
Equity Losses Reserve Reserves Equity
TEARE
EHRE ZiER wERE Hitite ERAH
AUS$'000 AU$'000 AUS$'000 AU$'000 AU$'000
T Tx T Tix T
140,424 (130,104) 2,068 (6,182) 6,206
- 6,503 - - 6,503
- - - 2,532 2,532
= 6,503 = 2,532 9,035
(12) - - 7 (5)
140,412 (123,601) 2,068 (3,643) 15,236
140,412 (123,601) 2,068 (3,643) 15,236
- 207 - - 207
- - - (274) (274)
= 176 - (274) (67)
140,412 (123,394) 2,068 (3,917) 15,169
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Financial Summary

The results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years, as extracted from the Group’s
published consolidated financial statements are set out

below:

Results

Revenue

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Owners of the Company

g

A TR i

DL AL RELS
E/NGE 2PN

Basic and diluted earnings % % 3L B K
per share (cents per share) ZF| (4, 1)

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
W OW WA R

EERARE

G
A A

e A
E/NGIE 2SN
FE A 18 4

S R 2

7 4 J A AR 2 IR B B4 RS B SE AR DA I
e B (i Bk B A 42 1 2 T % 10 & 5 T 5

®) WU

Year ended 31 December

BZE12831BLEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
20204 20214 20224 20234 20245
AU$’'000 AU$’000 AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$’000
T T T# T# TR
69,255 50,003 52,514 60,495 72,804
10,193 292 2,489 5,189 12,876
10,193 292 2,489 5,189 12,876
7.34 0.19 1.57 3.28 8.14

As at 31 December

R12A31H

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
20204 20214F 20224F 20234F 20245
AU$'000 AU$’000 AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$’000
T T T¥ THo FRT
85,397 95,300 104,878 108,315 132,572
(31,919) (35,331) (44,282) (39,557) (49,808)
53,478 59,969 60,596 68,758 82,764
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Tenement Register

P e e we i

Held at
31 December
2024
%
20245
Tenements 12A31H
Project ID Name Type BAELA Area ha Expiry
HH w% BEEEE il % AREAE b
SWEDEN
b}
Svartlidengruvan  EC 100 87.54 10 April 2027
Svartliden 2022:43 Knr1 AR 2027447100
Svartliden nr 3 EP 100 813.33 29 June 2025
iR T 2025464290
Faboliden Faboliden Knr1  EC 100 122.00 3 June 2029
RPRRERT 20294643 H
2016:75 Faboliden nr 11 EP 100 496.67 4 August 2028
PR ] o 202848 H4H
2022:5 Faboliden nr 84  EP 100 959.33 21 January 2025
BER Tl 2025%1H21H
2024:149 Faboliden nr 85  EP 100 1,058.02 30 September 2027
B TR 20274E9H30H
FINLAND
2y |
Orivesi 2676 Orivesi MC 100 39.82  Valid Until Further Notice
PRI A% HERTHEMN
ML2013:0006 Sarvisuo 1-2 EP 100 38.93 15 August 2025
S 202548 A 15H
Jokisivu 7244 Jokisivu MC 100 48.32  Valid Until Further Notice
TRUERSFF AR HENTEH
KL2015:0005 Jokisivu 2 MC 100 21.30  Valid Until Further Notice
TRBEART B0 BERTER
KL2018:0010 Jokisivu 3 MC 100 8.97  Valid Until Further Notice
TROEREEF B HENTER
KL2024:0005 Jokisivu 4 MCA 0 13.70 e
TRBERRRT
ML2012:0112 Jokisivu 4-5 EP 100 80.33 15 August 2025
BT A8 202548 15H
ML2017:0131 Jokisivu 7-8 EP 100 10.22 18 February 2027
S 202742H18H
ML2018:0082 Jokisivu 10 EP 100 461.37 27 March 2028
iR n] a8 202843427 H
Kaapelinkulma K7094 Kaapelinkulma ~ MC 100 65.10  Valid Until Further Notice
TRIERERT Y BERTERM
Uunimaki ML2020:0020 Uunimaki 1 EP 0 89.22 27 July 2027
B T 202747H27H
Vammala 1895 Stormi MC 100 157.53  Valid Until Further Notice
R A3 BHEATEA
KL2021:0001 Stormi 2 MCA 0 3.08 W
RIRERT R
Note: B ek -
**  — Area subject to application. R {5 R, o
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